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VIA FEDERAL EXPRESS

Executive Secretary

Florida Public Service Commission
2450 Schumard Oak Boulevard
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850

=

2 Re: Application for Approval of Merger Between Charter
Comminucations International, Inc.. OCI Acquisition Corp. and
Overlook Communications International, Corporation

" Dear Sir:

= On behalf of Overlook Communications International, Corporation, enclosed please
find an original and thirteen (13) copies of the referenced Application. Also enclosed is a
check in the amount of $250.00 to cover the filing fee.

Please date stamp and retumn the enclosed extra copy of this letter in the envelope
provided.

Please call me should you have any questions concerning this filing. Thank you for
your assistance with this matter.

- RECEVED & 41em ‘ Sincerely,
J";Tfﬁ—é_---‘?"‘; —— Edward P. Gothard
EPG/bg
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® & ORIGHAL
BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION m 1 *',

STATE OF FLORIDA

APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL
OF MERGER BETWEEN CHARTER
COMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL CASE NO._Z4 4 #/3 ~
INC., OCI ACQUISITION CORP. AND
OVERLOOK COMMUNICATIONS
INTERNATIONAL, CORPORATION

APPLICATION

Overlook Communications International, Corporation ("OCI"), pursuant to the applicable
Statutes of Florida and the Commission's Rules and Regulations currently in effect and/or
subsequently enacted, hereby requests Commission approval of a transaction through which it will
merge with OCl Acquisition Corp., ("Newco™). As will be described in more detail below, the
Acquisition Agreement' (the "Agreement”) between OCI, Newco and Charter Communications
International, Inc. ("C.COM") sets forth a merger of Newco and OCI, following which OCI will be
the surviving entity and Newco will cease to exist. As a regulated telecommunications provider, OCI
hereby seeks Commission approval of the Agreement.

Commission approval of the proposed Agreement will be beneficial to the involved
companies as well as their customers. Following consummation of the Agreement, OCI will be able
to provide communications services to its customers in a more efficient manner. Approval of the

proposed Agreement will not in any way be detrimental to the public interests of the State of Florida.

y A draft copy of the Acquisition Agreement is attached as Exhibit A",
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The customers of OCI will continue to receive the same high quality service presently rendered to
them. Additionally, no party to the Agreement will be given undue advantage over any other party.

In support of this Application, Applicant shows the following:

I. THE PARTIES

1. Charter Communications International, Inc. is a publicly held Nevada corporation
with principle offices located at 17100 El Camino Real, Suite i00, Houston, Texas 77058. C.COM
is a non-regulated entity which provides internet access services.

2. OCI Acquisition Corporation (Newco), is a wholly owned subsidiary of C.COM.
Newco was formed solely for the purpose of engaging in the transactions described in the Agreement
and has otherwise conducted no prior activities.

: Overlook Communications International, Corporation is a privately held North
Carolina corporation with principle offices located at 2839 Paces Ferry Road, Suite 500, Atlanta,
Georgia 30339. OCl is a non-dominant carrier that resells domestic and international long distance
service purchased from various facilities based carriers pursuant to the FCC's Competitive Carrier
policies.

4. OCl is authorized by the FCC to offer domestic interstate and international services
in all fifty (50) states and the District of Columbia as a non-dominant carrier. OCI currently
originates interstate traffic in fifty (50) states and the District of Columbia, and provides intrastate
service, pursuant to certification, registration or tariff requirements, or on an unregulated basis, in

thirty-one (31) states. OCI has applications for certification pending in an additional nine (9) states,
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where it intends to do business following certification. OCI is a certificated carrier in the State of
Florida.? ”

5. Pursuant to the transaction which is the subject of this Application, Newco will merge
with and into OCI. OCI will be the surviving entity, and will continue to operate as a regulated entity
pursuant to its present certifications, registrations, tariff requirements and rate structures, or on an
unregulated basis, pursuant to applicable law.

6. Current financial information for C.COM is attached hereto as Exhibit "B". Current
financial information for OCI is attached hereto as Exhibit "C".*

[I. DESIGNATED CONTACT
7. The designated contact for questions concerning this Application is:
Edward P. Gothard, Esquire
(Of Counsel) Nowalsky & Bronston
3900 North Causeway Boulevard
Suite 1275
Metairie, Louisiana 70002
Telephone: (504) 836-7423

Telephone: (504) 832-1984
Telecopier: (504) 836-7487

2 In Florida, OCI provides intrastate telecommunications services pursuant to Certificate of Public
Convenience and Necessity, Certificate Number 3178, See matter entitled "Application for Certificate to F avide
Interexchange Telecommunications Service by Overlook Communications International Corp.,” Docket Number
950871-T1, effective date December 29, 1995.

’ Exhibit "B" consists of C.COM's most recent Accountants’ Compilat on Report, dated May 10,
1996, with its sitached Balance Sheets, Statements and Accountants' Notes.

. Exhibit "C" consists of OCI's most recent Income Statement, Balance Sheets and Statement of
Cash Flows,
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9.

Copies of such correspondence should also be sent to:

Thomas W. Brinkman

Overlook Communications International, Corporation
2839 Paces Ferry Road, Suite 500

Atlanta, Georgia 30339

Telephone: (770) 432-6800

Telecopier: (770) 432-0007

I1I. REQUEST FOR PERMISSION FOR MERGER

At the present time, C.COM is a non-regulated entity operating primarily as an

internet service provider. OCI is a regulated entity providing 1+ and pre-paid calling card services

to its customers, By virtue of this transaction, and the resulting association of the two (2) corporate

entities, both companies will realize economic, marketing and administrative efficiencies.

10.

Applicant accordingly proposes a transaction which will accomplish the following:

(a)
(b)

(c)

)

(e)

Newco will merge with and into OCI;

As a result of the merger, the separate corporate existence of Newco shall
cease and OCI shall continue as the surviving corporation;

OCI shall continue to operate as a regulated entity pursuant 1o its present
certifications, registrations, tariff requirements and rate structures, or on an
unregulated basis, as provided by and pursuant to applicable law;

As a result of the merger C.COM will own all of the issued and outstanding
shares of the common stock of OCI; and

The stockholders of OCI will receive a designated number of shares of the
common stock of C.COM representing approximately forty (40%) per—cent
of the outstanding stock of C.COM.

It is respectfully represented herein that the transfer of stock as outlined above

represents transactions made for fair and due consideration to the stockholders of both C.COM and

OCL and that no party to the Agreement, including the stockholders of the participating companies,

will be given undue advantage over any other party to the Agreement.
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12.  The technical, managerial and financial personnel of OCI will remain the same afier
the transaction, and the customers of OCI will be provided services with the same high level of
expertise currently in place.

13.  The practical effect of the merger is a change in ownership of the common stock of
OCI. OCI will continue to operate in all respects as it presently operates.

IV. PUBLIC INTEREST CONSIDERATIONS

14.  Critical to the proposed transaction is the need to ensure the continuation of high
quality service to all customers currently served by OCI. The proposed transaction will serve the
public interest for the following reesons:

15.  First, the transaction will enhance the operating efficiencies, including market
efficiencies, of OCL

16.  Second, it will increase the appeal to present and potential customers of OCI as this
entity can provide communications services 1o its customers in a more cfficient manner.

17.  Finally, it may result in cost savings because of discounts on quantity ordering of
materials and services for both OCI and C.COM.

18.  Accordingly, the requested transaction will serve to create a heightened level of
operating efficiency which generally will serve to enhance the overall capacity of OCI to compete
in the marketplace and 1o provide telecommunications services for Florida customers at competitive

rates.
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V. CONCLUSION
19. WHEREFORE, for the reasons stated herein, Applicant respectfully requests that the

Commission authorize OCI to consummate the Agreement, and merger with Newco, as descnbed

DATED this_ day of O.u—,«a; 1996.

Respectfully submitted,

UM Hrpr

Edward P. Gothard, Esquire

(Of Counsel) Nowalsky & Bronston
3900 North Causeway Boulevard
Suite 1275

Metairie, Louisiana 70002

(504) B36-7423

(504) 832-1984

above,
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STATEOF  Georgia

COUNTY OF Cobb

YERIFICATION

I, Patrick E. Delaney, am the President of Overlook Communications
Imernational Corporation and am authorized to make this verification on its behalf. The
statements made in the foregoing Application are true of my own knowledge, except as to
those matters which are therein stated on information and belief, and as to thuse matters |

believe them to be true,

Title: President

Sworn to and subscribed before me, Notary Public, in and lor the State and

d
County named above, this 3¢ day of l;Z “§¢ , 1996.
Notary Public

of
My Commission expires: /mrumﬂ; T, 47 7 7
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EXHIBIT "A"

ACQUISITION AGREEMENT (DRAFT)



ACQUISITION AGREEMENT
BY AND AMONG
CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL, INC.
OCI ACQUISITION CORP.
sad
OVERLOOK COMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Dated as of June __, 1996
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REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF OCI ...
SECTION 2.01. Organizatos sad Qualification; Subsidiaries . ..............

SECTION 2.02.
SECTION 2.03.
SECTION 2.04.
SECTION 2.05.
SECTION 2.06.
SECTION 2.07.
SECTION 2.08.
SECTION 2.05.
SECTION 2.10.
SECTION 2.11.
SECTION 2.12
SECTION 2.13.
SECTION 2.14,
SECTION 2.15.
SECTION 2.16

Arcles of Incorporation sad By-Laws ... ... ... ... .. ...

----------------------------------------

-----------------------------------

....................................

ARTICLE Ml

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF C.COM AND NEWCO . ..

SECTION 3.01.

SECTION 3.02
SECTION 3.03.
SECTION 3.04.
SECTION 3.05.
SECTION 3.06.
SECTION 1.07.
SECTION 1.08.
SECTION 3.09.
SECTION 1.10.
SECTION 1.11
SECTION 1.12
SECTION 1.13.
SECTION 1.14.

SECTION 1.15.

Conuract Rightss == ... .. ..

................................

lw:.?‘m:.-lim ................
Absence of Cenain Changes or Events . .. . ... .... .. -
No Undisclosed Liabilities . . .
Absence of Litigation .
COwnership of Newco, Nu?nnr.k:nwnu

....................

................

------------

.......................

----------------
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SECTION 4.01. Approprists Action; Consents; Filings . . ... ..............

SECTION 4.02. Tn'l‘mruhunfh-tﬁl ............

SECTION 4.04, Directors of C.COM ............. P
SECTION 4.05. Lockup Arrangements
SECTION 4.06. Opinion of Counsel o CCOM. . ........ . ......

.......................

SECTION 5.01. Covenants of OCI . .. ... ..... .
SECTION 502 Covenans of CCOM . ........ . . ............
SECTION 5.03. No Solicuanons .

....................

SECTION 5.04, Accessto Informasion . .. .............. e
SECTION 5.05. Best Bfforts . ... ..... ..« ccvveoiiininacnansnnns
SECTION 5.06. Stockholders Meetings ... .....................
SECTION 5.07. BrokersorFinders .. ... ......_ ...... e S

ARTICLE VI

------

ooooooo

.......

CONDITIONS TO CLOSING .. ..........

SECTION 6.01. Conditicas to Each Party’s Obligation w Effect the Merger . . .

SECTION 6.02. Conditions w Obligatons of OCI . ., .. ... ... ..........

SECTION 6.03. Condinons 1o Obligstions of C.COM and Neweo . . .

ARTICLE VI
CLOSING .........

ARTICLE Vil
DELIVERIES AT CLOSING . ... .. ....

SECTION 8.01. Delivenesby OCI .. ..... ... ...

.....

SECTION 8.02. Deliveries by C.COM . ... ... e s

ARTICLE IX

.......

TERMINATION AND AMENDMENT .. ... . ........

SECTION 90]1. Termunanea . . ... ......... _—
SECTION 9.02. Effect of Terminanon
SECTION 9.03. Amendment .
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SECTION 11.01. Effectiveness of Representations, Warranties and Agresments .

SECTION 11.02. Notices ...

....................................

SECTION 11.0). CemainDefinitions .. .......... ... ..ocvviivnennnnn

SECTION 11.07. Assignment

------------------------------------

....................................

....................................

SECTION 11.08. Parties in Inwarest . ..................c00uun
SECTION 11.09. !ﬂmuhdnlpuﬂuﬂ-urlmdum
SECTION 11.10. Govermiag Law . ............c.cvvvunnisenrsrssss

SECTION 11.11. Jurisdicnon
SECTION 11.12. Counterparts
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ACQUISITION AGREEMENT

AGREEMENT dated as of Junse _, 1996 ("Agrmament”), =song CHARTER
mmmm&m-mwrmw
ACQUISITION CORP., 2 Nevada corporation ("Ngweo”), and & wholly owned ssbeidiary of
C.COM sad OVERLOOK COMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL, INC, a North Carolina
corporation ("OCI") snd PATRICK E. DELANEY ("Delsncy”) sad Stephen E. Ravills ("Ravilla”)
the principal sockholders of OCL

RECITALS

WHEREAS, upon ths terms and subject 10 the conditions of this Agreement sad
in sccordance with the General Corporation Law of the Stms of Nevada ("Nevads Law"™), snd
and into OCI (the "Marger”) as & result of which C.COM will own ail of the issued md

shares of the common stock, $ par value, of OCI (on a fully diluted bazis)
snd the stockholders of OCT mall own shares of the commaon swck, $.01 per share par
value ("C.COM Stock”) of C.COM oumstanding representing spproximately 40% of the
ourstanding C.COM Stock.

; WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of OCI has determuned that the Merger is fair
to, snd in the best interests of, OCI and its stockbolders; has approved and adopted tns
Agreement and the transactions contemplated herein; and this Agreement and the ransactons
contemplated berein have been approved by the stockholders of OCT;

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of C.COM has determined that the Merger s
in the best interests of C.COM aad its stockholders and has approved and adopted this Agreement
md the transactions contemplated herein;

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Newco has determined that the Merger 15
in the best imerests of Newco and its mockhoider and the Board of Directors of Neweo sad
C.COM, s the sole siockholder of Newco, have approved and sdopted this Agreement and the
transactions contemplated herexn,

WHEREAS, for Federal income Lax purposes, it is untended thas the Merger qualify
a3 1 reorganization under the provisions of section 168(2) of the Unuted States Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (the "Codc”) and that tus Agreement and the Annexes hereto shall
coostinute s "plan of reorganizstion” for the purposes of section &8 of the C vde,

WHEREAS, for sccountng purposes, it is intended that the Merger shall be
accounted for as 2 "pooling of interess”;

AGREEMENT
NOW, THEREFORE, o consideranion of the foregoing and the respecnve

represenmanons, Warannes, covonants and igreements set forth in this Agreement the partes
hereto agres as (ollown.
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ARTICLE T ?}hﬁp’.
THE MERGER T

SECTION 1.01. Tha Margsr Upon the terms and subject © the conditions set
forth in this Agreement, snd in accordance with Nevada Law, st the Effective Tima (as defined
in Section 1.02), Newco and OCT shall effect 1 merger by exscuting the Plan and Agreement of
Merger (the "Plag”) in substsatislly the form amached hereto as Apnax [ snd by executing sad
mm#wm*mmhummu-num
in the manser provided in Chapter 78 of the Nevada General Corporstion Law. As a result of
the Merger, the separste corporate existence of Newco shall cesse snd OCI shall continue a3 the
surviving corporstion in the Marger (the *Syrviving Corporasion”). The name of the Surviviag
Corporation shall continue 1 be “Overioock Commumications Internstional, Inc.” Prior 1 the
Mergez, C.COM shall, pursuant 1o the terms of the Subscription Agreement, & copy of which is
stached as Anngx [I] bereto (the "Subscription Agreement”), issue and deliver 10 Newco shares
of C.COM Stock equivalent to the number of shares of C.COM Stock o be transferred pursusnt
to the terms and provisions of the Plan.

SECTION 1.02. Effccrive Time As promptly as practicable after the exscution
and delivery of this Agreement by each of the parties herew, and upon satisfaction of all the
condirions to closing (as herenafter defined) the parties hereto shall cause the Merger to be
consummated by filing the Articles with the Secretary of State of the State of Nevada, in such
form as required by, snd executed in accordance with the relevant provisions of, Nevada Law
(the date and ume of such filing being the "Effective Time™). Concurrently, and as provided by
North Carolina Law, all appropriate filings shall be made with the Secretary of State of North
Carolina.

ARTICLE I
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF OC1
OCI hareby represents and warmanu w C.COM and Newco, 23 follows:

SECTION 101. Orgamizasion and Oualificanon. Subsmidisnes OC is a
corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of he State of
North Carolina, has ail requisite corporate or other power and authonty w own, lease and operase
its properties and to carry on its business as it i3 now being conducted, and is duly qualified and
in good standing o do business in each junsdicnon in which the nat wre of the business conducted
by it or the ownership or leasing of its propernes makes such qual fication necessary OCT has
no direct or mdirect subsidianies

SECTION 2.02. Amcles of Incorporagon and By-Laws OCI has heremofore
furnished 1 C.COM complete and comect copies of the Articles of Incorporation snd the By-
Laws, 10 each case a3 smended or restated, of OCI. OCI is not in wiclanon of any of the
provisions of its Amucles of Incorporation or By-Laws.

SECTION 2.03. Caputalizagon [(a)] The authorized capital stock of OCI consists
of ________ shares of common stock, S.___ par value ("QC]_Common Stock®) (sad
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__ shares of preferred stock, 5.___ par value - =17 Aseof
! shares of OC! Common Stwock [ssd ______ shares of OC]

wﬂﬂlﬂﬂumﬂdwﬂuiﬂqnﬂmmaﬂwnﬁHMﬁdﬂ.
agreement, SITEDgGAMENt Of CODMUTMERL

() All the sutstanding shares of capital stock of [mbsidisry?] are duly
sutherized, validly issued, fully peid snd sensssessable snd such shares are swned solely
by OCI free and clear of smy security imterests, liems, claims, pledges, agresments,
Gmitations on veting rights, charges or other encumbrances of any sature whatssever
[‘W‘}.Mnnqﬂmwﬂﬂ.n&uuﬁnﬂﬂb{m
registration rights), agreements, arrangements or commitments of any character to which
OC] or [subsidiary?] is s party relating to the issued or unissved capital stock of, or other
equity interests in, [subsidiary?|.

SECTION 204 Aythoriry OCT has all requisite corporsts power and suthonty
10 execute and deliver this Agreement, to perform its obligations hereunder and to consummate
the transactions contsmplated herein. The execution snd delivery of this Agreement md the
consummasnoa of the ransactions contemplaed herein have been duly authorizad by all necessary
corporate action and no other corporate proceeding on the part of OCI is necessary w authonzs
this Agreement or to consummate the transacnons contemplased herain. This Agreement has been
mmﬂumwmumgmmmnm.madwm
thereof by C.COM and Newco, consututes the legal, valid and binding obliganon of OCI
enforceable 1m accordance with its terms (i) except as limited by bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization. morswonium or other simular laws now or hereafter in effect relating to or affecong
creditory’ nghts generally, snd without limitasion, the effect of starutory or other laws regarding
fraudulent conveyances and preferental transfers and (ii) subject w the limitanons impos d by
;mu-nlruluofqtﬁty(uwﬂmufmau:hwfnmnhhqumﬁdndulwwh
equity).

SECTION 203. No Conflict. Required Filings and Consg . (a) Except as set
forth on Schedulg 2.05(a) the execunon and delivery of this Agreement Ly OCI does not, snd
the performance of tus Agreement by OCI wll not (i) coaflict with or viclaze the Artucles of
Incorporation or By-Laws, or the equivalent organizational documents, in each case as amended
or restated, of OCT [or Subsidiary?], (ii) conflict wath or viclaze any (ederal, state, formgn or
local law, starute, ordinance, rule, regulation, order, judgment or decree (collecuvely, “Lawg”) in
effect a3 of the date of this Agreement and applicable 1o OCI or [Subsidiary?)] or by which the
propernes thereof is bound or subject, or (iii) result in any breach of or consuute a defauit (or
an event that with notice or lapse of tme or both would become a default) under, or give 0
others any nghts of terminsnon, amendment, scceleration or cancsllsuon aof, or requure peyment
under, or result in the creation of an Encumbrance on, any of the properties or assets of OCI [or
Subsidiary?] pursuant 10 any note, bond, morgage, indenture, ~onwact, agreement, lease, licenss,
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permit, franchise or other instrument or obligetion 1o which OCI [er Subsidiary?] is & party or
by which OCI [er Sebsidiary?] or their respective properties is bound or subject excapt for
breaches, defanlts. events, nghts of termination, amendment, acceleration or cancellation, payment
obligations or lisns or Encumbrances that would not have a material adverse effect on the
business, properties, assets, condition (financial or otherwiss) operations or prospecss of OCI
("QCI Masarial Adverse Effecs”).

(b)  Except as set forth on Schedule 2.05(b), the execution and delivery of this
Agreement by OCI does not, snd the pe~formance of this Agresment by OCI will not, require
ManMwm«wdqummﬂﬂuﬁa
potification 0, any governmentsl or regulssory suthonity, domestic or foreign ("Covernmental
Egtities™) based on laws, rules, regulstions and other requirements of Governmental Entities in
effect as of the date of this Agreement, except for applicable requirements, if any, of (i) faderal
or state securities lsws snd the filing and recordation of appropriste merger documents a8
required by North Carolina Law and (ii) where the failure to obtsin such consents, approvals,
suthorizations or permits, or 10 make such filings or noafications, would not, either individually
or in the aggregate, prevent OC] [and Subsidiary?] from performing its obligations under this
Agreement or have sn OCI Material Adverse Effect

SECTION 2.06. Permits Complisnce Except as set forth on Schedule 1,06, each
of OC! [and Sabsidiary?) iz in possession of all franchises, grants, authonzatons, licenses,
permits, easements, VArNances, exemptions, consents, ceruficates, approvals and orders necessary
10 own, lease sand operate its propernes and 10 carry on its business as it is now being conductad
(collecavely, the *QC] Parmits”), and there is no action, proceeding or investigation pending or,
to the imowiedge of OCL, threatened regarding suspension or cancellanon of any of OCI Permits.
Neither OCT [mer its Subsidiary?] is in conflict with, or in default or violation of (a) ny Law
spplicable 1o OCI [er Subsidiary?] or by which any of the properties thereof is bound or subject
or (b) any of OCI Permits, except for any such conflicts, defaults or violanoas which would not
have a OCT Matenal Adverse Effect

SECTION 2.07. Einsncial Statements Ansched hereto as Schedule 2.07 which
is hereby incorporsted herein by reference, are (i) the unaudited financial sstements of OCT as
of [April 30, 19967], (the "Balance Sheet Datg”) containing the halance sheet of OCl md the
relazed sucement of operaniong, stazement of changes in cash flows, and stazement of shareholdery'
equity 8t aod as of such dawe, and (ii) the audited financial nxtements of OCT as of December
31, 1993, 1994 sad 1995, contmming the balance sheet of OCI snd the relsted statement of
operstions, statement of sharcholders’ equiry and statement of cash flows, in cach case for the
penods then ended (collectively, the "QC] Finmcial Staiements™). The OCI Financial Stasem as
have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted sccounung principles snd practces
consistently followed by OCI throughout the penods indicated, and fairly present the financial
pesiton of OC] s of the dates theseol,

SECTION 2.08. No Undisclosed Liabilives Except as set forth on Scheduls 2,08,
there are no lisbilines of OCI of any kind whatsoever, whether accrued, connngent, absoluts,
determuned, determinable or otherwise, and there is no existing condinon, simustion or set of
arcumstances which could reasonably be expected o result in such a lisbility, other than
lisbilines fully reflected or reserved agunst on the OCI Financial Statements; and liabilites
which, individually or in the aggregate, would not have an OCI Matenal Adverse Effect
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SECTION 2.09. Abssnce of Certaip Chanees or Events Except as set forth ca
Schedule 2.09, with respect to OC, since the Balsnce Sheet Date, thers has not been, nor with
the lapse of time is there expected © be:

(s) any change in its financial condition, assets, lisbilities (conungent
or otherwise), income, operspons, business or prospects which would have an OCI
Mazerial Adverse Effect,

(b) oy damage desruction or loss (whether or not cowered by
insurance) 1o its assets, properties, business of prospects which would have s OCI
Material Adverse Effect;

(¢) sny change or agreement to change its authorizad capital or the
ownership of its outstanding securities;

(d) any declaranon or payment of, or any agreement 10 declare or pay,
any dividend or distmbunon in respect of any of its equity interests or sy direct or
indirect redemption, purchass or other acquisinon of any of its equity mteress,

(e)  sny incresase in the compensation payable ar 10 become payabls by
it to any of its officers, employees or agents, or any accrual or mrangement for or
peyment of sy bonus or other special compensation of amy kind or anmy severance or
termination pay paid 10 any of its present or former officers or other key employees;

()  mny sale or ransfer, or any agreement, plan or armangement to seil
or transfer, any of its assets, propernies or rights 1o any other Person, or the cancallation,
or agroement to cancel, any mdebtedness or other obligation of any of its stockholders or
wﬂhwnummacmﬂm&mwmmew
amount of not more than § ;

(g) any plan, agreement or arangement grantng any preferennal rights
to purchase or acquire any interest in any of its assets, properties or nghts (other than
consents to the assignment of contracts) requanng consent of any party © the mansfer mnd
smgnment of any such sssers, property or righes;

(8)  any purchase or scquisiton, or agreement, plan ¢/ uTangement 10
purchase or acquire, any of its assets, properties, or nght: except in the ordinary course
of business and in the aggregate amount of not more than $100,000,

(i) sny waver of any of its nghts or clums which 1n the aggregaia
would have sn OC] Matenal Adverse Effect;

G) other than the ordinary course of its business, any amendment or
termination of amy matena: contract. agreement, license, permat or other night @ which
it 1S & party; or

(k)  any wransaction by it outside the ordinary course of its buminess

FauaWs * Nils
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SECTION 2.10. Ahssca of Lisigation Except as set forth on Schadule 2,10,
there is no claim, actnon, suit, litigation, proceeding, arbitration or investigation of sy kind, at
law or in equity (including actions or proceedings secking injuncuve relief), pending or, 10 the
knowledge of OCL, threstened against OCI or any properties or rights of OCI sad OCI is not
subject to any continuing order of, consent decres, settiement agreemaent or other similar written
agresment with, or, to the knowledge of OCI, continuing iovestigstion by, aoy Governmental
Entity, or any judgment, order, writ, injunction, decree or sward of sy Governmental Ennty or
arbitrator, including withour limitation, cease-and-desist or other orders.

SECTION 2.11. Empioves Benefit Plans

()  OCI does not heve, and has not had, sny employee benefit plan (including,
without limitation, ary “employes benefit plan,* as defined in Section 3(3) of the Employes
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA")), or any bonus, pension, profit
sharing, deferred compensation, incentive compensation, stock ownership, stock purchase, stock
option, phantom swock, retrement, vacation, severance, disability, death benefit, bospitalizanion,
insurance or other pian, srrangement or understanding (whether or not legally binding).

(b) OCI is not a party to any collective bargaining agreement.

(¢}  OCI bas no obliganon for redree heaith, medical or life insurance benefiny
under any plan or arrangements.

SECTION 212 Taxgs OCT has filed all federal, state and local tax remumns
required by lew, or has filed proper exienmons, and has paid all Taxes (as defined in Section 5.03
hereaf), assessments and pensities due snd payable The provisions for Taxes if any, reflected
in the most recent balance sheet included in the OCI Financial Statements are adequate for my
and all federal, state, county and local taxes for the penod ending on the date of that balance
sheet and for all prior penods, whether or not disputed There are no present disputes as w0
Tzxes of any narure payable by OCI.

SECTION 2.13. Brokers No broker, finder or investment banker is eatided o
my brokerage, finder's or other fee or commusmon m comnectnon with the mansactons
contemplated in this Agreement based upon arangements made by or on behalf of OCL

SECTION 2.14. QCI Corpormie Achon. The Board of Direciors of OCI (a1 a
meeting duly called and held) has by the unanimous vote of all directors present (a) determined
that the Marger 13 advisable and fair and in the best interesss of OCI and its stockholders, (b)
approved the Merger in accordance with the provisions of Secton 78.451 of the Nevada Law,
and G.S. 55-11-03 of the North Carolins Law, (c) recommended the approval of this Agreement
and the Merger by the holders of OCI Common Stock and directed that the Merger be submined
for considerstion by OCT's stockholders and (d) obtained the approval of the stockholders of OCI,
of 1 resolunon approving the Merger and the mansactions contemplated in this Agreement

SECTION 2.15. Environmental Laws and Regulations (a) OCI is in material
compliance with all applicable foreign, federal (including but not limsed 1o the Outer Continental
Shelf Lands Act, the Clean Water Act, the Oil Pollution Act, the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act, the Clean Air Act, the Comprehensnive Environmental Response Compensation snd
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Lisbility Act, the Occupational Safety and Haalth Act and the Hazardous Materisls Transportstion
Aﬁ).ﬂndhdhuuﬁuﬁdunﬂmludﬁuhpﬂhﬁuum&
bumss health or the enviroament (including, without limitation, ambient mr, surface water,
ground water, land surface or subsurface stram (collectively, “Eavironmental Law”), which
complisnce includes, but is not limited 10, the possession by OCI of all material permuts and other
provisions onder spplicabls Eavironmental Laws; OCI has not received notice of, or, ® the
m&o&hhmhﬁﬂdqmudmd@m
demsnd or notics by sy person or catity alleging lisbility under or noncomplisnce with amy
Eavircamental Law ("Egviroomenmal Clsim®): md o the knowledge of OCI, there sre mo
circumstances that sre reasonsbly likely 10 prevent or interfare with such material complimce in
the future, or to require material expenditures to maintain such maerial complisnce in the fonure.

(®) Mnnhﬁmmuammnhw
of OCL threatened against OCL, or, 1o tha knowledgs of OCI, against any person or entity whoss
lisbility for sny Eavironmentsl Claim OCI has or may have retained or sssumed either
contractuaily or by operation of law.

(€) To the knowledge of OC, there are no circumstances that could form the
basis for an Enviroomental Claim against OCI, or against a0y person or entity whose lishility for
any Environmental Claim OCI has or may have retined or assumed either contracmally or by
operztion of law.

216 Securitics Matters. [to come after discussion with Cushing re securities issues]
ARTICLE I u
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF C.COM AND NEWCOD

C.COM and Newco hereby jointly and severally represent and warrant 1o OCT that

SECTION 3.01. Qrganization and Qualificasion. Each of C.COM snd Newco is
s corporation, duly organized, validly exisung and in good standing under the laws of the State
of Nevada and has all requisite power and suthonty 1o own, lease and operste its propernes and
™ carry oa its business as it is pow being conducted, and is duly qualified and in ‘ood standing
t0 do bumness in each junisdiction in which the namure of the busmess conducted by it or the
ownership or leasing of its properties makes such qualificanon pecessary.

SECTION 3.02. Amicles of Incorparasion snd By Laws C.COM bas beretofore
furnished 10 OCI a complets and correct copy of the Arncles of lacorporation and the By-Laws,
as amended or restated 1o the date hereof, of each of C.COM mnd Newco. Neither C.COM nor
Newco is in violation of any of the provisions of its Amcles of Incorporation or By-Laws.

SECTION 3.03. Capializanon (s) The authorized capital stock of C.COM
consists of shares of common stock, § par value ("C.COM Common Stock”)
md shares of preferred sock, $.01 par value ("C.COM Prefemmed Siock®). As of the
date hersof (before giving effect 1o the transacnons contemplated heremn) (1) shares
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of C.COM Common Stock are issued snd outstanding, all of which are duly authorized, validiy
issusd, fully paid snd nocassesssble and not subject 10 preemptive nghts crested by statute,
C.COM's Articles of Incorporation or By-Laws or amy agreement 1o which C.COM is a party or
is bound snd (ii) shares of C.COM Preferred Stock are outstanding. Except as set
forth on Schaduls 3.01 berets, thers are no options, warrsnts, calls or other nghu (mcluding
regintration rights), agreements, sTangemaents or commitments presently outstanding obligating
C.COM to issus, deliver, sell or register shares of its capital stock or debt sscurities, or obligating
CCOM w grant, extend or enter into smy such option, wwrrant, call or other such right,
sgrecment, mTangement Or Commitment

®) AﬂthMduﬂdm#mmﬂym

agreements, srrangements or commitments of any character o which C.COM or Newco is a party
reisting 1o the issued or unissued capital mock of, or other equity interesss in, Newco or
obligating C.COM or Newco 10 grant, issue or soll any shares of the capital sock of Newco;

other than as contemplazed in this Agreement and the Subscniption Agresment between C.COM
and Newco.

(¢) The shares of C.COM Stock issued to Newco and exchanged pursuant o
the Merger s contamplsiad herein, upon issuance in accordance with this Agreement aad the
Plan, will be duly suthorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable and will not be subject
to presmpuve rights created by statute, C.COM's Articles of Incorporation or By-Laws or say
sgreement 1o which C.COM is a parmy or is bound

(d) Except as descnbed on Schedule 3 03(d) hereto, C COM does not have any
subsidisries or own anmy interest in any enterprise (whether or not such enterprise i3 a
corparznon).

SECTION 3.04. Authonty Each of C.COM and Newco has all requsiee
corporais power and authority 1o execute and deliver this Agreement, to perform ity obliganons
beresnder snd to consummare the ransacnons contemplated herein  The execution and delivery
of this Agreement and the consummanon of the transactions contemplated berein have been duly
authorized by all necessary corporate action and no other corporate proceeding on the part of
C.COM or Newco (including, wathout limitation, any spproval by the sharcholders of C.COM
of this Agreement or the Dansactions contempisted herein) is necessary 10 awthorize this
Agresment or 10 consummats the transactions contemplated herein. This Agreement has been
duly executed and delivered by CCOM snd Newco mnd, assuming the due suthonzation,
exscunioo and delivery hereof by OCI, constimuses the legal, valid and binding obligasion of
C.COM and Newco enforceable in sccordance with its terms (i) sxcept as limited by bankruptey,
insolvency, reorganization, morastorium or other similar law now or hercafier in effect relating
w or affecung creditors’ rights genenally, and without limitatior,, the effect of statutory or other
laws regarding fraudulent conveyances and preferennal transfers snd (it) subject 1 the limitations
impaosed by]'uuﬂ rules of equity (regardless of whether such enforceability is considered az law
or In equuty ).

SECTION 3.05. No Conflict. Required Filings and Consents. (a) The executon
and delivery of this Agreement by C COM and Newco does not, and the performance of ths
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Agreement by C.COM snd Newco will not (i) conflict with or violsts the Ceruficats of
Incorporation or By-Laws, s ameuded or restated, of C.COM or Newco, (i) conflict with or
violste sny Laws in effect 13 of the dase of this Agresment applicable o C.COM or Newco or
by which any of their respective properties is bound, or (iii) result in sy breach of or constituis
a dafmuit (or an event that with notics or lapse of time or both would become a defanit) under,
or give to others sy rights of termination, amendment, acceleranion or cancellation of, or require
payment under, or result in the crestion of a lien or Encumbrance on, sy of the properties oc
assets of C.COM or Newco pursusnt to, sny note, bond, mongage, indenture, contract, agreement,
lease, license, permit, franchise or other instrument or obligation %0 which C.COM or Newco is
a party or by which C.COM or Newco or any of their respective properties is bound or subject
except for breaches, defsults, events, rights of termination, amendment, acceleration or
cancellation, psyment obligations or liens or Encumbrances that would not have s material
adverse effect on the business, properties, assets, condition (financial or otherwiss) operations or
prospects of C.COM snd its subsidisries, taken 23 2 whole, or on the transactions berein
contemplatad ("C.COM Masterial Adverse Effect”).

(b) The exacution and delivery of this Agreemaent by C.COM and Newco and
the performance of this Agreement by C.COM and Newco does not require C.COM or Newco
o obtain soy consent, approval, suthorization or permit of, or o make any filing with or
notification to, any Govemmental Entities, except for applicable requirements, if any, of (i) the
Secunines Act of 1933, as amended (the "Secunpes Act®), the Secunnes Exchange Acx of 1934,
as amended (the "Exchange Act®) or the secunties laws of any other jurisdicton (the “Blug Sky
Lsws"), the National Assocanon of Securities Dealers, Inc. and the filing and recordation of
sppropriate merger documents as required by Nevada Law and (ii) where the failure o obtain
such comsents, approvals, suthorizatons or permits, or 10 make such filings or notifications,
would not, sither individually or in the aggregate, prevent C.COM from performing its obligabons
under this Agreement or have s C.COM Mautenial Adverse Effect

SECTION 3.06. Permits. Compliance Each of C.COM and Neweo is in
Mefﬂmnmmmmwnmm
exsmptions, consants, carnficates, approvals and orders necessary 1o own, lease and opersie its
properties mnd to cxrry o ity business 15 it is now being conducted (collecuvely, the "C.COM
Bermits®), snd there is 0o action, proceeding or investganion pending or, to the knowledge of
C.COM, threstened, regarding suspension or cancellanon of any of the C.COM Perruns. Neither
C.COM nor Newco is in coaflict with, or in default or violation of (s) sny Law applicsble w
C.COM or Newco or by which any of thewr respecuve properties is bound or subject or (b) =y
of the C.COM Permius, except for any such conflicts, defauits or violations which would not have
s CCOM Material Adverse Effect Nether C.COM nor Neweo has received from sy
Govemnmental Entity any written notification with respect to possible _soflicss, defaults or
wiclations of Laws

SECTION 3.07. Reponx. PFinancial Stasments (s) Except as set forth on
Schedule 3.07, (x) C.COM and 1ts subsdisnies have filed (i) all forms, report, statements znd
other documents required 1o be filed wath (A) the Secunnes and Exchange Commission (*SEC™),
mcluding, without limitation (1) all Annual Repors on Form 10-K, (2) all Quaneriy Reports on
Form 10-Q, (3) all Reports or. Form §-K, (4) all smendments and supplements to all such reports
mdmpﬂn_ﬁumu{uﬂa:ﬁvdy. the "C COM SEC Reporis*), snd () all other reports
or repstalion statements and (B) sny applicable Blue Sky Laws and (ii) all forms, reports,
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statements and other documents required to be filed wath any other applicable federal or state
regulssory suthorities (all sach forms, reports, statements and other documents in clauses (i) and
(ii) of this Secsion 1.07(a) being referred to berein, collectively, ss the "C.COM Repory®). The
C.COM Reports wers prepared in all material respects in accordance with the requirements of
spplicable Law (including, with respect 1o the C.COM SEC Reports, the Securities Act and
Exchenge Act, as the cass may be, and the rules snd regulsnons of the SEC thersunder spphicable
1 such C.COM SEC Reporn) sad (y) did not = the time they wers filed cootzin say untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to stats & material fact required o be stsied therein or
necessary in order to make the starements therein, in the light of the circumstances wnder which
they wers made not misleading

(b)  Each of the financial statements (including, in each case, any related notes
thereto) contained in the C.COM SEC Reports filed prior 1o or on the date of this Agresment (i)
hsve been preparsd in accordance wath, and complied 23 1o form with, the published rules sad
regulstions of the SEC and generally accepted sccounting principies spplied on a consistent basis
throughout the periods mvolved (cxcept as otherwise noted therein) snd (ii) fairly present the
financial position of C.COM as of 2.0 respectnve dates thereof snd the results of it operations

SECTION 3.08. Absence of Canwn Changes or Events Except as set forth on
Schedule 3.08, and as and 1o the extent disclosed in the C.COM SEC Reports filed pnor 1o or
on the date of this Agreement, there has not been any significant change by C.COM in ins
sccounting methods, principles or pracnces.

SECTION 3.09. No Undisclosed Lisbilities Except as set forth on Schednls .09,
there are no lisbilities of C.COM, Newco or any subsidiary of aay kind whatsoever, whether
sccrued, contingent, absolute, determined, determunable or otherwise, and there i3 no exisung
condition, situation or set of crcumstances which could reasoaably be expected 0 result in such
a lisbility, other than (a) liabilices fully reflectad or reserved against on the balmnce sheet
contsined m C.COM's 1995 Annual Report on Form 10-K or in the unandited consolidated
balance sheet contained in the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March
31, 1996; (b) lisbilines under this Agreement and fees and expenses relsted theretn; sad (c)
lisbilities which, individually or in the aggregats would not have an C.COM Matenal Adverse
Effect

SECTION 1.10. Absence of Litigation Except as set forth on Schedule 3.10,
there i3 no clum, acooa, suit, lingation, proceeding, arbitranon or, to the knowledgs of C.COM,
investigaton of any kind, &t lsw or in equty (including actions or proceedings seeking injunctive
relief), pending or, 1o the imowledge of C.COM, threstened in vmiting against C COM or Newes
or mny propernes or nghts of C.COM or Newco and neither C.COM nor Newco is subject 1 sny
continuing order of, consent decree, setiement agreement or other similar written agreement with,
or, o the knowledge of C.COM. conunuing investigation by, any Governmental Engvy, or any
judgment, order, wnt, injunction, decres or award of any Governmental Ennty or arbitrator,
including, withour limitanon, cesse and desist or other orders.

SECTION 311, Qwnenship of Newco No Pnor Activines (a; Newco was
formed solely for the purpose of engaging in the ransactions contemplated in this Agreement and
has otherwise conducied no pnor actvities,
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(b) Except for obligamnens or lisbilities incurred in connection with s
incorporation of organization snd the transactions contemplased in this Agreement and 2oy other
mwmm—ﬂﬂhmmﬂmh—mmm
or indirectly, through sny subsidiary or affiliace, sny obligarions or lisbilities or engaged in smy
business activities of any type or kand whetsoever or entered ini0 &y agreements of MTENgEmants
with sy person

SECTION 1.12. Isxss C.COM has timely filed all returus or reports required
1 be filed with any taxing suthority with respect 1o Taxes for any period ending on or before the
Effective Time, taking into account sny extension of time to file granted 10 or obtaned on behalf
of C.COM or Newca, all Taxes shown 10 be paysble oo such remurns or reports that are dus prior
1o the Effactive Time hsve been peid sod, as of the dase hersof, no deficiency for any maserial
amount of tax has been szserted or assessed by & taxing suthority against C.COM or Newco snd
all hisbility for Taxes of C.COM or Newco that are or will become due or payable wath respec
to periods covered by the financial ststements referred to in Section 3.07(b) bereof have been
paid or adequatsly reserved for on such financial statements

SECTION 1.13. Brokers No broker, finder or investnent banker 15 entted 1©
any brokerage, finder's or other fee or commission in connection with the transactions

contemplazed in this Agreement based upon urangements made by or on behalf of C.COM or
Newen,

SECTION 1.14. Eavironmental Laws snd Regulsuons (a) C.COM sod Newco
are in matenial compliance with all applicable Environmental Laws, which compliance includes,
but is not limited 1o, the possession by C.COM and Newco of all matenial permuts and other
governmental suthonzanons required under applicable Environmental Laws, and compliance wath
the terms and conditons thersof and complisnce with nonficaton, reporting and registrasion
provisions under spplicable Environunental Laws; netther C.COM nor Newco has recsived notice
of, or, to the imowledge of C.COM or Newco, is the subject of sny Eavironmental Clum; snd
1o the kmowledge of C.COM, there are no circumstances that are ressonably likely to prevent or
interfere with such matenal complisnce in the future, or 1 require matenal expenditures
muntain such mmenal complisnce in the furure

(b)  There are no Environmental Claums that are pending or, 1o the knowledge
of C.COM snd Newca, threstened aguinst C.COM or Newen or, 1o the knowledge of C COM and
Newco, against any person or snuty whaoss liability for any Esvironmental Clasm C.COM or
Newco has or may have retuned or assumed cither contractually or by operanon of law.

(c)  To the knowledge of C.COM snd Newcn, there are no circumstances that
could form the basis for sn Eavironmentsl Claim sgmunst C COM or Newco, or agunst sy
person or entity whose liability for any Environmental Clam C.COM or Newco has or may have
retmned or assumed either contractually or by operanon of law.

SECTION 3.15. Contract Rights. Except for this Agreement and the agreements
contemplated herein or as descnbed on Schedule 1,15, neather C.COM nor Newco is a party o
or bound by sy coatract or agreement, whether wrinten or oral, including, without limitation, sny
mgr_mfor employment, consulting or similar services, for capitai expenditures or
the acquiziton or construcuon of fixed assets, which constitutes any note, bond, indenture or
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other evidence of indebtedness or gusranty or security for indsbtadness of others, for the sale of
sy assez, or the grant of sy right or option to purchase such asset, which constimtes a lease,
which purports to limit the freedom of C.COM or say of its affilistes 1o compets in sy line of
business or in any geographic area or o borrow money or incur indebtedness.

SECTION 1.16. Emploves Benefit Plans.

(8) Except as described on Schedulg 3.16 herew, C.COM mnd Newco do not
have, and have not had any employee benefit plan (including, without limitation, any “employee
benefit plen.* a3 defined in Seconon 3(3) of the ERISA), or any bonus, pension, profit sharing,
daferred compensation, incentive compensation, stock owmership, stock purchass, stock option,
phansom stock, renvement, vacation, severance, disability, death benefit, haspitalization, insurance
or other plan, srrangement or understanding (whather or not legally binding).

(d) C.COM and Newco are not parties to any collective barguining agreemeat

(¢) C.COM and Newco have no obligation for retiree health, medical or life
insurance benefits under any plan or wrrangement.

ARTICLE IV
ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS

SECTION 4.01. Appropnate Achion: Consents: Filings OCI and C.COM shall
each use its best effonts to (i) take, or cause w be tmken, all appropnate action, and do, or cause
w be done, all things necessary, proper or advissble under spplicable Law or otherwise o
consummate snd make effective the transactions contemplated in this Agreement, (ii) obtan from
any Governmental Entities any consents, licenses, permits, waivers, approvals, suthorizations or
orders required o be obtained or made by CCOM or OCI or any of their subsidiaries in
connection with the consummanon of the wansacnons contemplaied herein, including, without
limitation, the Maerger, (iii) make all necessary filings, and thereafier make any other required
submiszions, with respect to this Agreement and the Merger requared under (A) the Securities Act
and the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations thereunder (in the case of C.COM), and any
other applicable federal or siste secuntes laws and (B) any other applicable Law. OCI and
C.COM shall furnish all informaton required for sy spplication or other filing 1o be made
pursusnt 0 the rules sod regulstions of any applicable Law in connection wath the transacnons
contemplated m this Agreement.

SECTION 4.02. Tax Tremment Pooling of Intenists. Each of OCI and C.COM
shall use its best efforts 10 cause the Merger to qualify, and will ni«t take any actions which could
prevent the Merger from qualifying (i) as a reorganization under the provisions of secnon 368(a)
of the Code and (ii) = a pooling of interests under spplicable accountng rules

SECTION 4.03. [ndemnificsnon. (s) C.COM covenants and agrees that it will
ndemnify the stockholders of OCI exchanging OCI Stock ("OCI Stockholders™) in cosnection
with the Merger from and agaunst any Loss (as hermmnafter defined) asseried againse, resulnng 1o,
impased upon or incurred or suffered, directly or indirectly (for example, on account of a Loss
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incurred by C.COM afier the dats hereof), by such OCI Stockholders resulting or arising from
my of the following ("QC Indezmified Claims®):

(i)  Any inaccuracy in any of ths representations and warranties mads
by C.COM or Newco herein or i any exhibit or schedule amached
hereto or sy facts or crcumstancas constinuting such inaccuracy;
sad

(i) Asy breach or noofulfillment by C.COM or Newco of the
covenmts of agreements set forth heren or in smy exhubit or
schedule atached hereto or any fects or circumstances constituting
such breach or nonfulfiliment;

provided, however, that OCT Stockholders shall, in the event of & clum for such indemnification,
be entitled to reimbursement for Losses in coanection with such claim only as provided berem.

(b) Each of OCI, Raville and Delaney covenant and agres that each will ndemnify
C.COM from snd against anry Loss ssseried sgmnst, resulting 1o, imposed upon or incurred or
suffered, directly or indirecily (for oxample, on account of a Loss incurred by C.COM or OC1
sfter the dute hereof), by C.COM resulting or arising from sny of the foilowing ("C.COM
M“ m‘ a!

(i) Any insccurscy in any of the representanons and warranties mads
by OCI herein or in any exhibit or schedule artached hereto or wy
facts or arcumstances constituting such inaccuracy; and

(1) Aoy breach or nonfulfillment by OCI of the covensots or agree-
ments set forth hermin or in any exhibit or schedule amached hereto
of any facs or crcumsuances consnrunng such breach or

poofulfillmenr;

provided, however, that C.COM Siockholders shall, in the event of a clum for such
indemnification, be entitled to resmbursement for Losses in coanecuon wath such clmm oaly as
provided herein.

(¢) As used herein, "Logs" or “Lossas” shall mean any damaege, lisbility or loss
(including, without limitztion, ressonsble amomeys’ fees and court costs and reasonabie costs and
expenses mcident 10, and amounts paid by a party ennded w indemnification b reunder (in each
case sn “Indampified Party®) in semtiement of, any clum, swt, acton or proceeding) sustained,
incurred, paid or required to be paid by any such Indemnified Party after the date hereof, plus
intorest thereon ot an suoual rate of interest equal to the prime rate of interest of Texas
Commerce Bank National Associstion from the dae of such 1 o33 to the date such claim 15 paid

(d)  The period of indemnity for Losses (the “Indemnity Peripd™) shall begin on the
date hereof snd end mr midnight of the first anniversary following the Merger berein
contesnplatad, sod, upon such expiration, no party shall have any further liability n respect of
nmmmmﬂaCCUMhdmﬁdﬂumhmehnmﬁu
dhuum:muddmuﬂummdhhdwumand.d:c!ndmry
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Period shall continue mtil each such indemnified claim or claim related 1o such claimed Los
is resolved. The Indemnity Period shall not continue as a result of the mers sending of a general
notce of 2 claim unsupportad by & reascasble basis for believing tha: grounds for indemmnificstion
exist; provided that the party receiving a notice which it believes meets the exception set forth
in the preceding clanse shall rise such objection within five days of recerpt thereof and the party
sending such notice shall have five days thereafler to amend such notice to identify the
reasonable basis of such claim.

(o) Notwithsmading saything to the contrary contsined herein, no Indemnified Party
shall bs permitted indemnification for any clsim until the Losses incurred with respect w all
claims for such party or parties aggregase $100,000, in which event Indemmified Picty shall be
indemnified for the full valus of all such Indemnified Claims and the full value of all subsequent
Indemnified Claims for which, individually, Losses in excess of $10,000 have been incurred or
asseried.

( Indemmificanon for an OCI Indemmified Claim shall be solaly n the form of
issuance of additional shares of C.COM Common Stock to OCI Stockholders (their successors,
assigns snd transferees) pro rata in accordance with their cwnership of C.COM Stock equal 1o
the aggregats amount of tbe Loss associated with such OCT Indemnified Claim through the dats
of issusnce. The value of such C.COM Common Stock for the purposes of this Secuon 4,03 only
in determining the sumber of shares to be issued to compensate OCI Stockholders for such OCI
Indemnified Claim shall be fixed sz §____ per share.

(g) Indemnification for an C.COM Indemnified Claim shall be solely m the form of
the re-transfor to C.COM of shares of C.COM Siock to C.COM (its successors, amigns and
ansfarees) equal 1o the aggregate amount of the Loss associsted with such C.COM Indemnified
Claim through the date of issusnce. The value of such C.COM Common Stock for the purposes
of tus Secnon 4.03 only in determining the number of shares to be issued to compensate C.COM
Stockholders for such C.COM Indemmified Claim shall be fixed at § per share,

(h) A clum for indemnification hercunder shall be sent to the appropnate
[ndemnifying Party by registered or cernfied mail prior to the expiration of the Indemnity Peniod
and shall sex forth (i) a brief description of the aature of the potential or actual Loss, and (i) the
total amount of the Loss mntcipated or incurred Upon receiving notice, if the party recerving
the cotics rejects any Loss, such party shall give wrimen nouce of such rejecon within thirty
days after the date of the notice of claim. If no such rejection of a notice of & clzim shall be so
sent within such 30-dsy period, the party receiving notice of & clum for sny Loss shall be
deemad t0 acknowiledge the validity of such claim for the full smount thereof. Each party shall
endeavor o assert each claim for indemnification, if any, promptly after it has acoual notics of
such clum, even if it has not determined the full smount of Loss sssocisted with such clmm.
In the event that the other party shall have made umely rejection of any such claim, snd the
partes shall have failed © resolve or compromise such claim wathin thirty days from the date the
recoving party shall have mailed notice of such rejection, then such clum shall be semled by
binding arbiration 1n Houston, Harns County, Texas Such arbivaton shall be subject to the
Texas General Arbiration Act and the rules of the Amencan Asoiranon Assocismon,
accordance with this Section. After the initiation of arbitration, the parnes shall sriempt 10 agree
upon one arbitrator. In the absence of such agreement, there shall be three arbitrasors, ome
dmpndh:mmhymuwwsmdin;lh:mnuﬂmdmpuﬂmnﬂ&nghydupmy
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receiving notice, both of which shall be designated within thirty days after arbitration has been
mitisted. The third arbitrator shall be chosen by the two desigasted arbitrators within forty days
sfier arbitration has been initistsd All expenses of the arbitration shall be bome by the parties
to the arbitrstion a8 the srbitrator(s) shall determine Asy sward shall be 2 cosclusive
detarminstion of the maner, shall be binding upon the parties and shall not be contested by them.
Withn ten days after the lishility for inderenity hereunder is finally established, whither by the
2greement (conswuctive of otherwise) wath & notice of claim, serdement, srbitration of otherwise,
C.COM shail issns C.COM Stock in the smount of the Loss determined by the arbitrmsor(s) in
sccordance with the terms hereof, [shall be issued to the prevailiag party????77].

SECTION 4.04. Direciors of CCOM. Prior 1 the date hereof, the board of direcsors of
C.COM has been incressed in number by one in accordance with the Arucles of Incorporation
and By-laws of C.COM and the Nevada Law, o (___) mnd, a3 of the Effective Dats, the
board of directors of C.COM shall fill such vacancy ca the board of directors resulting from such
incresse in number by electing Delaney as director of C.COM

SECTION 4.05. Lockup Armangements In coanection herewith and as a condition herewo,
immediately foilowing the execution snd delivery hereof, Delaney and Rawille (principal
stockholders of OCT) shall execute and deliver to C.COM a Lockup Agreement in the form of
Schedule 4 05(a) hersto.

SECTION 4.06. Qpinion of Counsel 10 CCOM In comnecton herewnth and a3 a
conditon herewo, Woodbum & Wedge, special Nevada counsel 1o C.COM, shall deliver ©
C.COM legal opinioa 1o the effect that & vote of the stockholders of C.COM is not required
pursusnt © Nevada lsw in order 10 approve the Merger or the ransactions herein contemplated

ARTICLEY

COVENANTS

SECTION 5.01. Covensnts of OC]. Except a3 expressly contemplated in this
Agreement, during tha penod from the date hereof and continuing unnl the Effectuve Time,
(x) OCI will carry on its business in the regular and ordinary course, consinent with past
practice, and use its best efforts to preserve inmact its present business arganization, keep available
the services of its present officers and employees and preserve its relationships with customers,
suppliers, licsnsors, licensees, contractors, distributors and others having business dealings with
it and (y) wathout limiting the generality of the foregoing, OCI wall not

(a) (i) deciare, set aside or pay wy dividend nr other distribution
(whether in cash, sock or propenty or sny combinaz on thereof) in respect of amy of its
caprtal stock, (i) split, combine or reclassify sy of i s capital stock or issue or suthocize
of propose the issuance of any other secunnes in respect of, in lisu of or in substrunon
for shares of its capital swck or (iii) amend the terms of. repurchase, redeem or otherwise
mmummswmmmuummnmmnrm
secunties or any secunines of sy Subsidiary, or propose 1o do any of the foregoing,
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(b) suthonze for issusnce issue sell deliver or agres or commut to
issus, sell or deliver (whether tirough the issusnce or gramting of optons, warrants,
commitments, subscriptions, rights © purchase or otherwise) sary siock of sy class or any
other secunties (incinding indebtedness having the right 1o vote) or equity equivalemts
(inclnding, without limitstion, stock spprecaation rights), except as required presusat to
the agresmaonts snd instuments outstanding on the dats hersof, or amend in any matenial
respect any of the terms of sny such securities or agreements cutstnding on the date
hereof.

(¢) smend or propose 1o amend i arncles of meorporsnon or by-lews;

(d)  acquire, sell, lease, encumber, tansfer or dispose of smy assens
outside the ordinary course of its business, consistent with past pracuce, or maks sy
capiial expenditures aggreganag in excess of $ , except in each case purrusnt o
obligations in effect on the date hereof which have been disclosed w C.COM, or enter
into sny contract, commitment or transaction outside the ordinary course of its business,
conmistant with past practice, or emter into any matenial contract, commitment or
transaction;

(e)  crests, wncur, assume, guarsntes or otherwise become liable or
obligated with respect o sy indebtedness for monies borrowed (other than for obligations
incurred under credit arrangements which are (i) exisung as of the daze hersof and
(i) Financial Statements or schedules heretn) or issue or sell any debt securities or
wasTants of rights 10 acquire aoy debt securities or guzrantee (or become lizble for) sy
debt of others or pledge or otherwise encumber any matenial assets or creatz or suffer any
mazerial lien thereupon;

(f) pay, discharge or sstisfy any claims, lisbilities or obliganons
(sbsolute, sccrued, asserted or unasserted, contingent or otherwiss), other than the
peyment, discharge o satisfaction 1n the ordinary course of business, conmstent wath past
practice, or in accordance with their terms, of lisbilities reflected or reserved against in,
or contemplated in, the OC] Finencial Statements (or the notes therew) or incurred in the
ordinary course of buniness, conmstent with past pracuce;

(g)  Except as required by law, (i) enter mto, adopt, amend or werminste
any Benefit Plan or sy agreement, amangement, plan or policy berween imelf mnd one
or more of im direciors or exscunve officers or (ii) incresse in any manner the
compensztion or benefits of sy director, officer or employee or pay sn, benafit not
required by any plan snd srrangement as in effect as of the date hereof, except i the case
of son-officer employess for normal increases n the ordnary course of business,
congistent with past practice, that, in the aggregate do nct result in 2 matenial increase
i benefits or compensabon expense, or enter inio any con racl, Agreement, commitment
or urangement 10 do any of the foregowng; or

() (i) Agree to take any of tha foregoing actions or (ii) ke or agres
to take any acuon that would result in any of its representations and warranties set forth
i this Agreement being untrue or in mny of the conditons to the Marger set forth
[Sectien __ | hereaf not being sansfiad
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SECTION 5.02. Covensnm of CCOM Except as expresly comtemplated in this
Tm(z]ﬁﬂtﬂﬂﬂh“(%ﬂm}ﬁnwuhhﬂ_n
hlﬁlﬂuﬁnmmﬁﬂﬂﬂnﬁ:&ﬂmhhﬁunm
mummmmmhmqﬁmm-d
contractors, distributors and athers having business dealings with them and (y) without limiting
hmdhmmﬂmumdhmﬂw-
waummmnmu—-aﬁm

(8) (i) declare, set aside or pay sny dividend or other dismibution
(Muhaﬁ.niamw-ymm&mﬂmih
capital stock, (ii) split, combine or reclassify sy of its capital stock of issue or authorize
ar propose the issusnce of any other securities in respect of, in liew of or i substution
for shares of its capital stock or (jii) amend the terms of, repurchase, redeem or otherwise
scquire, or permit any Subsidiary ™ repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire, my of its
sscurities or any securities of its Subsidiaries, or propose 1 do avy of the foregoing;

(b) (i) agres to take any of the foregoing actions or (ii) take or agree
1o take any sction that would or iz reasonsbly likely to result in any of its representations
and warranties set forth in this Agreement being untrus or in any of the condinons © the
Merger set forth in Section __ hereof not beng sansfied

SECTION 503. No Solicmapons Each of OCI and its representatives will
immedistely any exisung discussions or negotiations with any third party with respect to
oy merger, business combination, sale of any assets outside of the ordinary course of businesy,
sale of shares of capital stock outside of the ordinary courss of business or similar wansacuon
involving sy OCT (s “Newro Transaction®). Neither OCI nor any representative on its behalf
will, and each of OCI and its representanves shall use its best efforts w ensure that none of is
Affilistes, officers, directors, representatives or agents will, directly or indirecty, soliat, mutate
or encoursge (including by wey of fumishing informaton) sny Person o take any acnon
concerning any Newco Transacton (other than the trangacnons contemplated in this Agreement).
OCI or 1ts representanve shall prompdy adwvise C.COM in wnnng of sany such inquiry or proposal
regarding a Neweo Transacoon, including the terms thereol.

SECTION 5.04. Access o Informaton.

() Upoo resasonsbie nofice and subject 10 restncoons comtmned in
confidennality sgreements o which such party is subject (from which such party shall use
reasonshle efforts 0 be releassd), sach party hereto hall (and shall cause cach of their
Submdianes ) afford to the officers, employess, accountants, counsel and other
representatives of the other, reasonable access, dunng normal business hours dunng the
periad prior to the Effecuve Time, to all its propernes, books, contracts, commitments and
records and, duning such peniod, such party and shall (and shall cause esch of ther
Subsidianes ) furmish prompdy o the other all informanon concemung its business,
propernes and personnel as such other party may reasonably request

------
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()  Esch party shall keep such information confidential in sccordance
with the terms of paragraphs (5), (6), (7) and (%) of the Lemer of Intent, dated May 20,
1996, by and berween C.COM and OCL

SECTION 5.05. Bemt Effors Subject to the terms and conditions of this
Agreament, each of the parties hereto agrees 10 usa its best effors © take, or cause 10 be taken,
all actions, snd to do, or czuse to be dooe, all things necessary, proper or advisable under
spplicable Laws ©0 consummate and make effective the transactions coatemplaad in this
Agreement including, without limitasion, (i) such actions as may be required to be taken under
spplicable federsl snd stase securities or Blue Sky laws in consnection with the ssusnce of
C.COM Stock contemplased bersin, snd (ii) the preparstion sad filng of all other forms,
registrations and notices required © be filed 0 consummate the transactions contemplated herein
and the micng of such actions as are necessary to obtain any requisite approval, consent, arder,
examption, waiver by sy public or privaze third party.

SECTION 5.06. Stockholders Meenngs Prior to or concurrently th the
execution of this Agreement, each of OCI and Newco, through its Boards of Dir ors, has
recommended o its sockholders the spproval of the transactions contempleied he - snd the
holders of the outstanding capital stock of each of OCI and Neweo has approved the =ger and
the other transactions contemplated herein.

SECTION 5.07. Brokers or Finders Eachof thepartieshe ‘orepr mmams®o
usalf, its Subsidiaries and its Affiliates, that no agent, broker, investment ban: o1, fine. . advisor
or ather firm or Person is or will be enntled 0 sy brokers’ or finders fee ¢ y other
commisnion or similar fee in comnection with any of the wansactions contemp 1 in this
Agreement.

ARTICLE VI
CONDITIONS TO CLOSING

SECTION 6.01. Condinons to Each Partv's Obligation 1o Effect the Mers::. The

obligsnons of each party 10 effect the Merger shall be subject 1o the sansfacnon ar or pnor to the
Effecuve Time of the following condidons:

(s) This Agreement shall have been approved and adopted by the
affirmative vote of the holders of all the outstanding shares of OCI and Newco voting oa
the matter, in each case in accordance with spplicable law and [ne holder *?7] of my

of the outstanding shares of OCI shall have elecied to exercise its dissenter or sppraisal
nghts in connecton with the Maerger.

(b) No mamue, rule, regulation, executive order, ¢ecree or mjuncoon
shall have besn enacted, entered, promulgated or enforced by any Usoted States court or
Govemmental Eatity of competant junsdicoon which prohibits the consummanos of the
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SECTION 6.02. Conditions 1 Obligaoons of OC] The obliganoas of OCI ©

effect the Merger are further subject 1o the satisfaction at or prior ©o the Effecuve Time of the
following conditions, unless waived by such parties:

(a) The representations and warranties of C.COM and Newco set forth
in this Agresment shall be trus and correct as of the date of this Agreement mnd a3 of the
Effactive Timae, s if made as of tha Effective Time, except where say failures 10 be true
snd correct would not, in the aggregate, have & C.COM Massrial Adverse Effect

(b) Each of C.COM and Newco shall have performed snd complied,
in all material respects, with all obligations and covenants required to be performed or
complied with by it under this Agreement a1 or pnor 10 the Effective Time

(¢) From the date of this Agreement through the Effective Time,
C.COM and Newco shall not have suffered 8 C.COM Material Adverss Effect

SECTION 6.03. Condinons m Obligatons of CCOM snd Newcp The

cbligations of C.COM and Newco to effect the Merger are further subject to the ssosfacton ut
or prior 1o the Effecuive Time of the following conditions, unless waived by such pardes:

(a) The representanons and warrannes of OCI set forth in this

shall be true and correct as of the date of this Agreement and as of the

Effective Time, as if made as of such time, except where sy failures to be true and
carrect would not, in the aggregaze, have s Material Adverse Effect

(b) OCI shall have performed and complied, :n all material respects,
with all obligations and covenants required 1o be performed or commplied with by it under
this Agreement at or prior to the Effecove Time

(¢) From the date of this Agreement through the Effecuve Tima, OCI
shail not have suffered an OCI Matenal Adverse Effect

(d) C.COM shall have received an opinion from its counsel, selected
m its sols discretion, to the &ffect that, unon consummation of the Merger, Newco wall
be the owner and holder of all of the issued and outstanding voang capital stock of OCI
md will have the power pursuant to such ownership 10 elect all of the members of the
Board of Direciors of OCL

(¢) C.COM and Newco shall have received all necessary end proper
consents of third parnes w the ransacnons contempluted heretn

(f) There shall have been no change in OCI (including, withow
limitation, the issuance of addinonal voung secunities, any modificanon or amendment to
the artcles of incorparation or bylaws of OCI or the creanon of any agresment) which
would prevent or restict the ability of C.COM 1o exercise the voung nghts and pnvileges
relatad 1o the shares of capital stock or OCI and, by virtue of such votmg nghts, o elect
100% of the board of directors of OCI
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ARTICLE VII

DhAfT

The closing of the transactions and agreements contemplated herein, heremafter referred
the *Cloging.” shall take place beginning at 10:00 am. at the offices of Brown, Parker &
LLP., 3600 Two Allen Center, 120C Smith Strest, Houston, Harris County, Texas 77002
earlier of 1996, or at such other time, place and date as parties may
designate in writing and shall occur in the manoer and order specified in the
of Cloming to be prepared in connection with this Agresment

ARTICLE Vil

i

1

DELIVERIES AT CLOSING

SECTION 3.0 Deliverics by OCl Uanless wmived by either of C.COM or
Newco, a2 its option, &t Closing, OCI shall deliver 10 C.COM and Newco the following:

() Opinjon of Counsel An opinion of Cushing, Momns, Armbruster,
& Jones, duted the Closing Date, in substantially the form set forth in Exhibit  herem.
Such opinion shall include any maners incident 10 the matters herein contemplated as
C.COM, Newco and their counsel may ressoasbly request, including the form of all
papers and the validity of all proceedings.

®) Finsncal Informangn Finsncial informaton and reports with
respect to OCI for ecach monthly period ending after the Balance Sheet Date, balance
sheets and income statements, provided that if no such balsnce sheet or income statement
is available for any such month, there shall be provided a good faith estimma of the pre-
tax tncome for esch such month,

()  Officers Cemficate  Ceruficates, dated the Closing Dms, of the
chief exacutive officer of OCI cernfying that, as of the Closing Date, (i) there 1s no, snd
there has not been and there is not reasonably expected to be sny, breach by sach
corporation in the performance of any of the sgreements, covensnts and conditions heren
@ be performed by it in whole or 1 part, which, singly or in the aggregase, has had or
could reasonsbly be expected 10 have an OCI Material Adverse Effect; and (i) the each
of the representations and wartanties of such carporation contained in this ~greement, as
of the date made snd a3 if made as and of the Closing Date, is true and corr ‘ot as if mads
at and as of the Closing Data.

. (d) Miscellancous Any and all dooments, sgreementss, conmracn,
certificates or other insruments which C.COM or New:o may reasonably request as
necessary o sppropnate for the consummation of ths transachonas contemplated in this
Agreement.

SECTION 2.02. Deliverics by C.COM.  Unless waived by any of OCI, at ins
option, &t Closing, C.COM shall deliver 1o OCT the following:
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() QOupmionof Counsel An opimico of Brown, Parker & Leaby LLP
dated the Closing Date, in substancially the form set forth in Exghibit  bereso. Such
opinion shall include sny marers incident 10 the matters herein contemplated as OCI sad
their counsel shall reasonably request, including the form of all papers t=d the validity
of all procsedings.

(b) Officers’ Cortificaas  Cernficates, dated the Closing Date, of the
chisf sxacutive officer of each of C.COM and Newco camfying that, as of the Closing
Date, (i) there is 0o, and there has not been and these is not ressonsbly expected o be
any, breach by such corporation in the performance of any of the agreements, covenants
snd coaditions herein to be performed by it in whole or in pan, which, singly or in the
sggregate, has had or could ressonsbly be expected o have 2 C.COM Matenial Adverse
Effect; and (ii) each of the representations snd warranties of such corporation comtsined
in this Agreement, as of the dms made snd a3 if made as and of the Closing Dats, is true
mnd correct as if made 2t and as of the Closing Date.

() Miscellaneous Any and all documents, sgreements, contracts,
certificates or other instruments which OCl may reasonsbly request as pecessary or
smppropriate for the consummarion of the transactions contemplated in this Agreement

ARTICLE IX

TERMINATION AND AMENDMENT

SECTION 9.01. Icmunanon This Agreement may be terminated at any time
prior o the Effective Time, whether before or after approval of the marters preseated in
connection with the Merger by the stockholders of Neweo and OCI:

(a) by mutual consent of the parues heremw;

(b) by ather OCI or C.COM, if the Merger shall not hsve been
consummated before [September 30, 1996 ?7?] (unless the failure 10 consummase the
Maerger by such date shall be a result of the action or falure to act of the party seeking
o termingte this Agreement); or

(c) by any party hereto, if (1) the conditions to such party’s obliganons
shall have become impossible to sensfy or (i) any permanent injunction or other arder
of & court or other competent suthority prevenung the consummation of the Marger shall
have becoms final and nonsppeaiable.

SECTION 9.02. Effecs of Terminanon Except .is contemplated in Secnon
hereof, in the event of the termmation sod sbandonment of this Agreement pursusnt 1o Section
— bereol, this Agreemant shall forthwath become void and have no effect, without sy lisbility
on the part of any party hereto or its affiliates, directors, officers or swockholders Nothing
contained in this Section __ shall relieve any party from liability for any willful breach of this
Agrecment
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SECTION 903. Amendment This Agresment may be amended by the parnes
hersto a1 any time before or sfler spproval of the matters presented in connection with the Merger
by the stockholders of Newco or OCL, but, after sny such approval, no amendment shall be made
which by spplicsble Law requires further approval by such stockholders wathout such further
spproval. This Agresment msy not be smended excepr by an instrument in writing signed on
behalf of cach of the parties heretn.

SECTION 9.04. Extension: Waiver At any time prior to the Effective Time, the
parties bereto may, to the extent legally allowed, (i) extend the time for the performanca of any
of the obligstions or other acts of the other parties hereto, (i) waive any inaccuracies in the
representat.ons and warranties contained heremn of in sny document delivered pursuant hereto and
(iii) waive complisnce with any of the agreements or conditions contsined herein. Any
sgresment on the part of a party herewo 1o any such extension or waiver shall be valid oaly if set
forth in & written instrument signed on behalf of such party.

ARTICLE X
OTHER POST CLOSING COVENANTS.

SECTION 1001. Noncompennon

() Remnctive Covenants Each of Raville and Delaney acknowiedges
and agrees that C.COM and Newco will suffer great loss snd damage if either of Raville
or Delaney or any of their Affilistes should engage in any way in any buminess operstion
which is the same as or similar 10 the bumness operations conducted by OCI as of the
Effective Time snd that it may be difficult or impossible 1o compute the amount of sach
loss or demages, thereby potentaily leaving C.COM and Newco withowt adequsss legal
remady if the covenants of this Section 10.01 are breached Each of Raville and Delaney
scknowledges that the covenants and conditions of this Agreement are reasonable and
necessary for the protectnon of the business of C.COM, Newco and OCI following the
Effecive Time. For the purposes hereof, “gimilar” shall mesn a bumness which is 1o
active competition with 1 line of business in which OCI is engaged at the Effective Time.
In recognition of the foregoing, each of Raville snd Delaney, individually sand on behalfl
of his Affiliates, agrees that for 2 period of three years such parnes shail not, directly or
indirectdy:

(1) be or become s jomnt venturer in or owne:, in whole or in
part, of, or be a parmer, parucipant, investor, or shareholder of or be associszed
with, or bave any proprietary or financial interest in any Person which 1s engaged
in or is carrying on the same or smilar business as that conducted by OCT within
those termiwones where OC] 1s conducting or is presently proposing o conduct
business as of the Effectave Time;

(v)  in any way, directly or indirectly, for himself or on behalf
of or in conjunction wath any other Person salicit, divert, ake away, or attempt

to take away any of the customers of the business or patronage of any customers
of OCI, or
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(i) in amy way, for himself or on behalf of or in conjunction
with soy other Person, solicit, divert, take sway or stempt 1 take sway say of
the employees of OCI (grovided that neither shall not be ceemed 1o have vioisted
the prohibition of this subsection if it employs a former employee of OCI and has
not contacted such former employee regarding employment unnl sfter such former
employes has left the employment of OCT); pmvided, however, hat nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to prevent or limit soy Person's right 10 invest, directdy
or indirecty, in the securities or equity interests of any Person having competing
business if such Person owns not more than five percent (3%) of any class of
ousstanding voting securities or not more than five percent (5%) of the equity
interest having management power of such Person. .

()  Refoomation

(i)  In the event the covensnts not 1o compets contsined in this
Section shall be held by any court of competent junsdiction 10 be woud or
otherwise unenforcesble in any manner, then the parties hereso shall coasider this
Agreement o be amended and modified 50 23 1w eliminme therefrom such
particular provision, area or junisdiction As 1o which this Agreement is 5o heid o
be void or otherwise unenforcashle, and, as to all other sreas or junisdictions
covered by this Agreement, the terms and provisions hereof shall remain in full
force and effect as originally writen,

(ii) In the event the covenants not 1o compete contxined herein
should be heid by any court or other suthonty 0 be effective in a parncular ares
or jurisdiction oaly if such covenants are modified to limit their duranon, ares or
scope, then the parties hereto shall coasider such noncompettion provisions 1 be
50 amended and modified with respect to that particular ares or jurisdiction $0 as
1o comply with the order of any such court or other authonty aad, as © all other
staies, countries, or political subdivisions, the soncompetition covenants contunasd
herein shall remun i full force and effect as angnally wnnen,

(¢) Remedies In recogninon of the irreparable harm tha: a violsdon
of my of the covenants of this Agreement (including without limitapon this Section)
would cause C.COM and Neweo, each of Raville and Delaney agrees thar in addition o
anry other relief afforded by law, an injunction against such violanon or violanons may
be ismued agunst lum and every other Persom concemed thereby, 1t bang the
understanding of the parties that an injuncton shall be the proper mode of relief

SECTION 10.02. Cermain Tax Maniers [to ba reviewed by Bla’ @ Hawk|

()  OCI will prepare on a basis consistent wath pnor years and file or
cause 1 be prepared and filed all mncome Tax Retumn: for OCI that are required to be
Fled with the appropnae Governmental Enuties for aw Tax period ending on or prior
to the Effective Time. OCI will prepare on 2 bams consistemt with pnor years and, if
required ® do 30 by applicable Law, deliver to C COM or its Affiliates for signing and
filing any siste income Tax Retums of OC! with respect 1o any Tax penod ending on or
prior to the Effecuve Time that have not been filed pnor o the Effecave Time
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(b)  Except as otherwise provided in Section _____ or Secticn ,
C.COM will prepare and fils or cause © be prepared mad filed all Tax Returns for OC1
that are required 1o be filed with the spproprnams Governmental Entives for all periods as
to which such Tax Returns are dus after the Effective Time. Nothing in this Section shall
be inserpretsd © limit, reduce, expand or sugment any of the warranties or representations
of OCI as © Taxes and Tax Returns. A complete list of Tex Returns reasonsbly
mticipated © be dus by OCI within 90 days after the Effective Time shall be provided
by OCI to C.COM at least |5 days prior w0 the Effective Time.

ARTICLE XI
GINERAL PROVISIONS

SECTION 11.01. Effectivencss of Reoresentations, Warrantics snd Agreements
The representanons, warranties and agreements of each party hereto shall remain operative and
in full force and effect regardless of any investigation made by or on behalf of any other party
hereto, sny person controlling sny such party or any of thair officars or directors, whether prior
1© or after the exscution of this Agreement, for a penod of one year,

SECTION 11.02. Notices All notices and other communications given or made
pursuant hereto shall be in writing and shall be deemed 10 have been duly given or made a3 of
the data delivered, mailed or transmitied, snd shall be effecuve upon receipt, if delivered
personally, mailed by registered or cenified mail (postage prepaid, retum receipt requested) to
‘he parties &t the following addresses (or 2t such other address for a party as shall be specified
by like changes of address) or sent by electroaic transmission to the telecopier number specified
beluwr

9 Cr e 11 o 14
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CEAFT
(a) If o OCI or Delaney: ek

Overlook Commumicstions Internaiional, Inc.
2839 Paces Ferry Road, Suite 500

Atlenta, Georgia 30339

Ancution: Patrick E. Delsney
Telecopiar No.: (770) 432-0007
with 2 copy o

Cushing, Moms, Armbruster & Jones

2110 Peachtree Center Cain Tower

229 Peachtree Street, NE

Atanta Georgia 10303

Atsation: Charles Cushing, Jr.
Telecopier No. (404) 658-9865

(®) If 10 Raville:

Antention: Stephen E. Rawile
Telecopier No.: (__)____

() Ifw CCOM:

Charter Communicanoas International, Inc.
17100 El Camino Real, Suite 100
Houson, Texas 77058

Telecopier No.: (7T13) 486-7674

with & copy 1o:

Browm, Parker & Leaby, LLP.
3600 Two Allen Center

1200 Smith Strees

Houston, Texas 77002-4595

Aftenbon: Dallss Parker
Telecopier No.. (713) 654-1871

is:ﬁ'?i 1 'lﬂ.':'Mu- 25
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SECTION 11.03. Carwun Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement, the term:

“knowledge® or “known” shall mean, with respect to any master in question, if s
executive officer of C.COM, Newco or OCI, a3 the case may be, has actual knowledge of such
manter as of the date as of which such marmer is represeated;

h'mummwumm.m
associstion, trust, unincorporated organization, other entity or group (as defined in Section 13(
of the Exchange Act);

“Subsdiary” or “Subsidianes” of any person, mesns any corpormtion, limised
liability company, parmership, joint venture or other legal entity of which such person, as the
case may be (either alone or through or together with any other subsidiary), owns, directly or
indirectly, 50% or more of the capital sock or other equity ioterests the holders of which are
genenly entitled to vote for the election of the board of directors or other governing body of
such corporstion or other legal entty;

"Iax" or "Taxes” shall mean any and all taxes, charges, fees or levies, paysble 1o
zy federal, state, local or forsign toang ahonity or ageacy, including, without limitanon, (i)
income, franchise, profits, gross receipes, minimum, alterngnive minimum, estimated, ad yalocem,
value added, sales, use, service, real or personal property, capital sock, license, payroll,
withholding, disability, employment, social security, workers compeasstion, unemployment
compensazion, utility, severance, excise, stamp, windfall profits, wransfer and capital gains taxes,
(ii) custom duties, imposts, charges, levies or other similar assessments of any kind, and (iii)
mterest, penalues aad additions to tax imposed with respect thereto.

SECTION 11.04. Headings The headings contained in this Agreement are for
refersnce purposes oaly and shall not arTect in any way the meaning or interpretanoa of thus
Agreement

SECTION 11.u5. Seversbility. If any term or other provision of this Agreement
i determined © be invalid, illegal or incapable of being enforced by smy rule of law or public
policy, all other conditions and provisions of this Agreement shall nevertheless remmn in fuil
force and effect 5o long as the economic or legal substancs of the transactions contemplated
berein is not affected in any manner matenally adverse to any party. Upon such determinssion
that any term or other provision is invalid, illegal or incapable of being eaforced, the parnes
bereto shall negotiate in good faith 1o modify this Agreement 50 as i5 effect the onginal intent
of the parties as closely a3 posmble in an acceptable manner to the end tha: the tansactions
comternplated hereby sre fulfilled to the extent possible.

SECTION 11.06 Ennrs Agresment This Agreement (together wath the Annexes,
Schedules and Exhibits berew) consurutes the entire agreement of the parties and supersedes al
Wmﬂwnphﬁmmmmmmcmummmhm
subject maner hereof.

SECTION 11.07. Asngnmens. This Agreement shall not be assigned by operstion
oflnormhmumdmuﬂupmmrmmﬂmmdmmmuhm.

‘:mn- :fu_____
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SECTION 11.08. Pamies in Interngt This Agreement shall be binding upen and
Mﬂwuhhﬂd-ﬁmm&mﬁghﬁwmwm
(other than the provisions of Section md Section ), is intended to or shall confer
upon any other person any right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsosver under or by resson
of this Agreement.

SECTION 11.09. Egilure or Indulgencs Not Waiver Remedies Cumulative No
failure or delsy on the part of any party hereto in the exerciss of any night hereunder shell impair
such right or be construed 10 be 2 waiver of, or acquiescence in, any breach of any representasion,
warranty of Agresment herein, nor shall sy singls or partial exercise of any such right preclude
other or further exercise thereof or of any other right. All rights and remedies existing under this
Agreement are ia additicn to, and not exclusive of, any rights or remedies otherwise availsble.

SECTION 11.10. Gowverning Law It is the intantion of the parties that the
mmumthuﬂmﬂmShnmeMmﬂuMg
ﬁvﬁﬁydﬁ:mﬁsmdhmuﬂhma{hdﬂm
and duties of the parties; provided however, thar with respect to matters of law concemine the
internal affairs of any entity that is a party ® or the subject of this Agreement, the law of the
jurisdiction of organization of such entity shall govem.

SECTION 11.1). Junsdiction. Each party hereby irmevocably submits o the
muﬂjMMthNHSMMnCMIWNMMdT“uq
wdh&denthCiqnfﬁminqm-ﬁth;
m;hmmmmummmmumﬂm
mﬁMﬂﬂM.Mthlﬂhhﬂbm(mﬂmwoﬁm
Muhmmmﬁmmmﬂ«oﬁﬂuhmuﬁnﬁn};muimm
such consent 10 junisdiction is solely for the purpose referred to in this Section 11.11 snd shail
not be deemed w0 be & general submission to the jurisdiction of said Cowis or in the Stase of
Texas other than for such purpose mmhﬁywumﬁﬁtw:mﬂhgmm
connection with any such action, swit or proceeding; provided, however, that marters w0 be
rmlvedtllmdlatﬁmumﬁedhmshﬂlbermlﬂdmlybymdiuﬁmm
mﬁmmmMmumhmdumdﬂinﬁusﬁnmn.n

SECTION 11.12. Counterpans. This Agreement may be executed in one or more
mﬂhhﬂmmhmmmmmnmhorwhichm
executed shail be deemed to be an original but all of which taken together shall constitute one
and the same agreement

SECTION 11.13 Amendment This Agrecment may be amended uoly by wninen
instrument executed by the parnes hereto

il T T L e - 27
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, C.COM, Newco, Raville, Delsney and OCI have
caused this Agresment 1o be exacuted as of the date first written sbove by ther respective officer
thereunto duly authonized

gcnm COMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL,

By:

Name:

Tide:
OCI ACQUISITION CORP.
By

Name:

Tite:

&vgm COMMUNICATIONS INTERNATIONAL,

By:

Name.
Tide:

STEPHEN E. RAVILLE

PATRICK E. DELANEY

STUIVI ] W0l Jreeaes mp 28
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EXHIBIT “B"

CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS
INTERNATIONAL, INC.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION




Accountants’ Compilation Report

Consclidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 1996
and December 31, 1995 (unaudited)

Consclidated Statements of Operations for the three
months ended and period from inception to
March 31, 1996 (unaudited)

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three
months ended and period from inception to
March 31, 1996 (unaudited)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited)

Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Statement of Operaticns
for the three months ended March 31, 1596

Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information

8-15
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@'CKEY, RUSH & CO., P‘.

Certified Public Accountants

Douglas A Dwckev, CPA T Mark Rush Py

To the Board of Directors
Charter Communications International, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Houston, Texas

We have compiled the accompanying balance sheets of Charter
Communications International, Inc. and Subsidiaries (a development
stage company) as of March 31, 1996 and December 31, 1995, and the
related statements of operations and cash flows for the three
months then ended and for the period from inception toc March 31,
1996, in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting
and Review Services issued by the American Institute of Certified

Public Accountants.

A compilation is limited to presenting in the form of financial
statements information that is the representation of management.
We have not audited or reviewed the accompanying financial
statements and accordingly, do not express an opinion or any other
form of assurance on them.

Dickey, Rush & Co., P.C.

May 10, 1996

e % gad Road One, Maie M0 Houston, Texas —'Ba Pl BT Fat 07150 4. S0
00 E F Lomrv Expmy Teras Cinv Tewss ““W] M ViK™




Charter .-nmicltim Int-mtion. Inc.

and Subsidiaries

(A Development Stage Company)
Consolidated Balance Shests

(UNAUDITED)

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Ccash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted

Accounts Receivable, net of allowance for
doubrful accounts of § B6,811 and § 3,762

Receivables from Related Parties

Inventories

Frepaid Expenses and Other

Total Current Assets
Property and Equipment, at cost

Property, Plant and Equipment
Accumulated Depreciation

Total Property and Equipment
Other Assets
Advances Related to Acquisition
Deposits
Investment in Joint Venture
Intangible assets, net of accumulated
amortization of § 87,098
Total Other Assets

Total Assets

See accompanying notes and accountants’

March 31, December 131,
1996 1995
s 475,887 s 43,841
179,177
951,912 43,18¢
73,992 34,181
326,750
Iy -1 W ' |- T—" |- WD {1
2,267,423 149, 348
2,214,982 933,613k
—(399,894) ____(146.687
1,815,088 786,955
150, 000
47,758
78,902
—aa2dB8.243
—2.364.901 ____150,000
25,447,412 S_1.088. 201

compilation report.




chnrt-:‘—l.m.l.aa:im Int -mtion. Inc.

and Subsidiaries
(A Develcpment Stage Company)

Consclidated Balance Sheets
(UNAUDITED)

March 31,
1998

December 31,
1995

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable - Trade S 1,420,460

Accrued Expenses and Other 324,255
Due to Related Parties 16,564
Unearned Revenues 151,229
Current Portion of Long-term Notes Payable 177,085
Line of Credit 121,332
Loans from Shareholders 1.828
Total Current Liabilities 2,212,753
Long Term Dabt
Long-term Notes Payable, net £1,409
Senior Subordinated Notes, net 1.928. 427
Total Long-Term Liabilities 1.979.83¢6
Total Liabilities 4,192,589
Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred Stock-.01 par value; 100,000
shares authorized, 550 shares issued
and cutstanding; ligquidation preference
of 5 1,999,800
Common Stock - .00001 par value; 45,000,000
shares authorizad, 11,622,697 and 7,298,353
shares issued and outstanding 116
Additicnal Paid In Capital 4,834,015
Accumulated Deficit During
Development Stage {2,579 328)
Total Stockholders’ Equity __2.254.823
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity S.8.447. 4128

) 195,730
93,008
129,167

129,443
WN—— Y 5}

549,176

172,838
—_—172.812
721,995

73
2,235,902

(1,871,675’
pu—] T 9111
s 088,300

See accompanying notes and accountants’ compilation report.
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Chnrt-:.:l-un.laltim Inl:cmtion. Inc.

and Subsidiaries
(A Development Stage Company)

Consclidated Statements of Operations

(UNAUDITED)

Three Months

Ended
March 231, 1996
Revenues
Communications Services s 57,843
Hardware and Scftware 50,030
Internet Connection Services 3123.84%
Toctal Revenues 431,722
Zost of Revenues and Operating Expenses
Data Communications and Operations 219,685
Hardware and Softcware Costs 37,208
Sales and Marketing 180,147
jeneral and Administrative 577,588
3ad Zebts
Jepreciation and Amortization 93,952
Interest Expense 44,518
inte-ast Income (938)
Toc .al Cost of Revenues
=nd Operating Expenses 1.182.157
Net Loss before Income Taxes
and Minority Interest in
Consclidated Subsidiary {720,435)
Income Tax Provision (benefit) 0
Minority Interest in
Consolidated Subsidiary 12.783
Net Loss i (207 632)

Jan. 26, 1994
(Inception) te

March 21, 129¢

3 170.662
50,03¢C
p— I+ L )

. 74 5§

251, .24
37,205
180, .47
2,261,:76
3, 762
240,533
167,379
(5.274)

(2,592,111)

See accompanying notes and accountants’ compilation report.
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Chlrt-:.mmic-tionl Inl:.-rnnr.:lnn. Inc.

and Subsidiaries
(A Development Stage Company)
Consoclidated Statements of Operaticns

(ONAUDITED)
Three Months Jan. 26, 1994
Ended (Inception) to
Marxch 31, 1396 March 31, 1996
Loss Per Share s (0. 09) -2 (0.44)

Number of shares used

in computing net loss per share 8.202.232 2.844.6822

See accompanying notes and accountants’ compilation report.
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Chutn‘:-nm.icntim Inl:-ml:ion.. Inec.

and Subsidiariss

(A Develcpment

Stage Company)
Consclidated Statemeants of Cash Flows

(UNAUDITED)

Three Months

Ended
March 31, 1996
Cash Flows From Operating
Activities
Net Loss - (707,652)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss
toc net cash used in operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization 93,952
Bad Debts
Amortization of Discounts on
Senior Subordinated Notes 914
Non-Cash Consulting and
Services Fees 20,597
Decrease (increase) in
operating assers:
Accounts Receivable [55,024)
Receivables from Related Parties 18,236
Inventory and Other Asserts (42,399)
Deposits (46,744)
Prepaid Expenses and Other (206,153)
Increase (decrease) in
operating liabilicies:
Accounts Payable 272,865
Accrued Expenses and Other 16,147
Due to Related Parties (129,167)
Unearned Revenues 38,299
Total adjustments {116.477)
Net cash usud in operating
activities {726,129)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchase of Property and Equipment (B47,954)
Proceeds from Sale Leaseback 208,000
Investment in Jecint Venture (76,902)
Advances relaced to
subsequent acquisitcion 150,000
Acquisition of Subsidiary (525,C20)
Purchased Goodwill {6.000)

Jan. 26, 1954
{Inception) to

$ (2,579,328)

242,633
3,762

914

197,597

(101,941)
(15, 945)
(42,399)
(46,744)

(222,322)

468,596
109, 155

e R AD
ﬁzﬁ Eﬂl:.

(1,949,723}

(1,7u1,590)
208,000
(76,902)

(525,000)
(£,000)

See accompanying notes and accountants’ compilation report.
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mrtcrhnicltionl Inumtinn. Inc.

and Subsidiaries

(A Development Stage Company)
Consclidated Statements of Cash Flows

Net cash used in investing
activities

Cash Flows FProm Pinancing Activities

Loans from Shareholders
Repayment cf Loans
£rom Shareholders
Proceeds from Line of Credit
Repayments on Line of Credit
Proceeds from Senior
Subordinaced Notes
Proceeds from Issuance of
Stock Warrants
Proceeds from the Issuance of
Common Stock
Proceeds from Issuance of
Preferred Stock

Net cash from financing
activicies

Net Increase in Cash

and Cash Equivalaents

Cash and Cash Equivalents

at beginning of period

Cash and Cash Equivalents

at End of Period

Interest Paid
Taxes Paid

(UNAUDITED)

Three Months
Ended

March 31, 1996
(1,097,85¢6)

(8,111)
1,754,694
265,306
423,319

— 2,435,208

611,223

BEm—— D% [ b

823,064

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:

s 5,387
0

Jan. 26, 1994
(Inception) to

Maxch 31, 1996
(2,181,492)

1,225,328
{1,227,520)
129,443
{8,111)
1,927,513
292,487
443,315

1.99%,800

4,786,279

655,064

-7 125,635
o

See accompanying notes and accountants’ compilation report.
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Chlr. Communications Intnmtl.‘l. Ins.
and Subsidiaries
(A Develcpment Stage Company)
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 1996

(UNAUDITED)

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Consolidated Financial Statements

The consclidated balance sheet of Charter Communications
International, Inc. (cthe "Company*), a Nevada corporation, and
it‘'s wholly owned subsidiaries as of March 31, 1996 and the
relaced statements of operations and statements of cash flows for
the chree months and period from inception to March 11, 1996, are
unaudited. In the opinion of management, all adjustments, which
include only normal recurring adjustments necessary to present
fairly the financial position, results of operations and cash
flows for the periods presented, have been made. All significant
intercompany items have been eliminated in ccnsolidaticn.

Certain disclosures and other information required by generally
accepred accounting principals have been omitted from these
financial statements as permitted by reference toc other Securities
and Exchange Commission filings. These statements should be read
in conjunction with the Company’'s Form 10-KSB Annual Report as of
Decemper 31, 1985.

o - .

Revenues from telecommunications, Internet connections services
and networked computer sales and services are generally recognized
when the services are provided,

Invoices rendered and payments received for telecommunications
services and Internet access in advance of the period when
revenues are earned are recorded as unearned revenues and
recognized ratably over the period the services are provided or
the cerms of the Internet subscription agreements, which are
generally 3 to 12 months., Sales of hardware are recognized when
installation has occurred and no furcher performance cbligation
remains Sales of pre-packaged scftware are recognized upon
delivery of the prdduct.

Ipventorlies

Inventories at March 31, 1996 consist of Internetworking an'
necwork computer products as well as preo-packaged software used
for Internet access. All invencory is recorded as finished goods
and is available for sale. Inventories are statned ac the lower of

cost or market Cost is determined on the firsc-in, firer-cuc
mechod .

See accountants’ compilation report.




chnr.- Communications In:tmt‘ll. Inc.
and Subsidiaries
(A Development Stage Company)
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 1996

(UNAUDITED)

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)

Income Taxes

The provisicn for income taxes is computed on the pretax income
included in cthe consclidaced statement of income. The asset and
liability approach is used to recognize deferred tax liabilicies
and assets for the expected future tax consequences of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts and the tax basis of
assecs and liabilities.

Net Loss Per Share

Loss Per Share - Net loss per share was computed by dividing the
net loss by cthe weighted average number of common and commcn
equivalent shares outstanding during the period. For purpcses c:
this calculacion, dilutive outstanding warrants and employee stoc
cpticns are considered common stock equivalents. Due to the loss
incurred for the periods presented, all common stock equivalents
are considered anti-dilutive and have been omitted from the
respective earnings per share calculations.

Supplementary Lose Per Share - On March 8, 1996, the Series A
Preferred Stock was automatically converted into 2,847,412 shares
of the Company’s common stock. Supplementary loss per share is
the loss per share amount adjusted to reflect the conversicn of
preferred stock on March 8, 1996 as if the conversion had occurred
on the day the preferred stock was issued. Supplementary loss per
share for the three months ended March 31, 1996 and for the period
£rom inception on January 26, 1994 to March 31, 1996 was (5.07)
and (5.39), respectively.

amortization

The Company amcrtizes any purchased goodwill on acquisitions over
a period of not less than 60 months on a straight-line basis.

NOTE B - ACQUISITIONS
Phoenix DataNet, Inc.

On January 8, 1996, the Company acquired 90 percent of the issued
and outscanding capital stock of Phoenix DataNet, Inc.(PDN), in
exchange for § 525,000 in cash. PDN, a Texas corporation, was
formerly a subsidiary of Phoenix Dacta Systems, Inc. (Systems).

PDN was originally incorporated on February 21, 1995, and prior to
that date had operated as a division of Systems. Systems entered

Ses accountants’ compilation report.
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ch.l.:.: Communications Inl:lmt..ll. Inc.
and Subsidiaries
(A Development Stage Company)
Notes to Financial Statementsa
March 31, 1996

(UNAUDITED)

NOTE B - ACQUISITIONS (Cont.)

Phoenix DataNef. Jac. (Cont.)

into an agreement on December 22, 1995 to sell its 50 percent
ownership of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of
PDN. On March 21, 1996, the Company acquired the remaining 10
percent in PDN through the issuance of 150,000 shares of the
Company’'s common stock, at a estimated fair market value of $2.00

per share at the time the transaction was consummated. The
acquisition has been accounted for as a purchase.

PDN engages in the business of providing Internet access to
businesses and individuals and a full range of related services,
including the creation and development on behalf of its customers
of Internet based advertising, cuscomer service functions. on-line
sales and services and other on-line interactive servic s.
Additionally, PDN sells and services a complete line of
Internetworking products for Internet access.

Phoenix Data Svestems. Inc.

On March 21, 1996, the Company acquired 100 percent of the issued
and outstanding capital stock of Systems. The transaction
involved the exchange of 1,000,000 shares of the Company’'s common
stock, 825,000 shares of which were mmediately issued free and
clear of any adverse claims cr encumbrances and 175,000 snhares are
being retained by cthe Company in order to secure represencations
and warranties and covenants of Systems and Systems shareholders
and will be subject to offser against claims against Systems. The
gshares immediately issued in the transaction were valued at

S 2.00 per share, the estimated fair market value as of the date
the transaction was consumated. A separate value will be placed
upon the retained shares when and if they are evenrually issued.
The acgquisition has been accounted for as a purchase.

Systems is in the business of providing computer network
integration, service, consulting and support for commercial
businesses.

See accountants’ compilation report.
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Ch.l.l’. Communications Int-mtl‘l. Inc.
and Subsidiaries

(A Development Stage Company)
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 1996

(UNAUDITED)

NOTE B - ACQUISTIONS (Cont.)
Bhoenix Daca Systems, Inc.

Unaudited pro forma revenues, net loss and loss per share assuming
the transaction had occurred at January 1, 1996 is as follows:

Historical Proforma
For the 3 Months Ended For the 3 Months Ended
March 31, 1996 March 31, 1996
Revenues S 431,722 £ 1,797,194
Net Loss (707,652) (833,049)
Ner Loss per share [.09) (.09)

Papama Phone Centers

On March 30, 1996 the Company acguired the assets and rights to
operace long distance telephone cencers at variocus U.S. milicary
installacions in the Republic of Panama. Prior to March 30, 1986
the Company had been receiving royalties from telephone calls
placed at these phone centers, under a seperate contract. The
phone centers and rights to provide these service were acquired
for che price of § 224,000 cash and 2,000 shares of common stock
of the Company wvalued at $2.00 per share. Simultanecusly with the
purchase the Company entered into an agreement with a lease
finance company to sell and lease back a portion of the assets
acquired. Lease financing was cbtained in the amount of $168,000,
the acquisition price of the majority of the phone center assets.
The term of the lease provides for monthly payments of 55,712,
beginning on April 1, 1996 and ceontinuing through March 1, 1393.

This transaction is not considered to be a significant business
compinacion and accordingly, no proforma information is presentced.

IR .1 U
On January 24, 1996 the Company entered into an agreement for
joint operations of international telecommunications service 1nto
and out of various locacions in the Country of Mexicoc. The

Company has agreed to incur various expenses tc reactive the
internacional telecommunications service to various hotel

See accountants’ compilaction report.
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Ch;rt. Communications mt-mti‘l. Inc.
and Subsidiaries
(A Development Stage Company)
Nctes to Financial Statements
March 31, 199%6

(UNAUDITED)

NOTE B - ACQUISTIONS (Ceont.)

Joint Venture Agreement(Cont.)

facilities, arrange for agreements with international carriers to
provide call termination and other services and contribute future
funds for egquipment to connect new customers. As a resulc of
these contributions and efforts the Company will receive 50

percent of the net revenues generated from the joint operations cf
this service.

NOTE C - INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets consist of the following at March 31, 139%6:

Organizational Costs 5 6,872
Non-Compete Covenant and Other 78,700
Goodwill 2,239,769
Accumulated Amortization (R7.0981
i 2.238.28)

NOTE D - LONG-TERM NOTES PAYABLE

At March 31, 1996 the following long-term notes payable were
ocutstanding. These liabilities were assumed upon acguisiticn of
Phoenix Data Systems, Inc. and have been included in the
accompanying financial statements.

Promissory note payable to a bank,
collateralized by contracts, accouncts
receivable, furniture, fixtures, equipment
and personal guarantee of a shareholder, payable
in monthly insctallments of $§ 2,330, interest act
prime rate plus 2% through June 29, 1996. ] 6,578

Promissory note payable to a bank,
collateralized by an automobile, payable in monthly
inscallmencs of § 445, interest ac B.5%
through January, 2000. 18,991

Promissory note payable to a bank,
collateralized by an automobile, payable in

moncthly installments of § 606, interest at 12.0%
through December 19, 1998. 17,2195

See accountants’ compilation report.
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Chl:! Communications Int-mtl.nl, Inc.
and Subsidiaries
(A Development Stage Company)
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 1996

(UNAUDITED)

NOTE D - LONG-TERM NOTES PAYABLE (Cont.)

Promissory note payable toc a bank,
ccllateralized by an automobile, payable in
monthly inscallments of § 419, interest at 8.5%
through February, 2000. 16,692

Promissory note payable to a finance company,
collaceralized by office equipment, payable
in monthly installments of S 1,399, including
incerest through February, 199%7. 19,038

Promissory note payable to a bank,
collateralized by real estate owned by a related
company of a shareholder, payable in its entirety
with interest at prime rate plus 3%

on April 25, 1996. 150,000
Total Long-term Notes Payable 228,494
Less current portion 1177.0858})
Long-term Notes Payable, net s _S51.409

NOTE E - SENIOR SUBORDINATED NOTES

Beginning in December, 1995, the Company made a private offering
of $2,500,000 of its 12% Senior Subordinated Notes due December

1, 2000, with actached warrants which will grant the purchasers
cf the Notes the right to buy 2,000,000 shares of Company’'s Common
Stock. The warrants will grant che purchasers the right to
exchange the face amount of Notes at prices of $.70 per share in
1996, $1.25 in 1997, $1.75 in 1998, 52.25 in 1999 and $2.50 in
2000. Interest will be payable quarterly at the rate of 12¥% per
annum, in arrears. The notes are not secured by any asset or
guaranty of the Company.

Cf the 52,500,000 in notes offered, 52,220,000 were issued prior
to March 31, 1996. The fair market value of cthe 1,776,000
warrants issued in conjunction with the notes was estimated by the
Company tc be $292,487 and is recorded as additional paid in
capital and a discount on the notes. The notes are scated nc. of
discount, which is being amortized over the term of the notes.
Amorcization of this discount included in the accompanying
financial scatements for the three months and period from
inception to March 31, 1996, amountud to $914, and is included in
interest expense for those periocds.

See accountants’ compilation report.
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Ch.-.r. Communications mt-mti‘l. Inc.
and Subsidiaries
(A Development Stage Company)
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 1996

(UNAUDITED)

NOTE F - LETTER OF CREDIT AGREEMENT AND RESTRICTED CASEH

The Company issued an irrevocable letter of credit in favor of a
vendor of the Company to secure various vendeor invoices in the
normal course of business. The vendor invoices totaled 517%,177
and are included in trade accounts payable at March 31, 199C  The
irrevocable letter of credit is secured by a certificate of
deposit pledged to the issuing financial instictucion.

NOTE G - COMMON STOCK AND COMMON STOCK PURCHASE WARRANTS ISSUED
FOR SERVICES:

The Company issued 12,500 shares of common stock and granted
80,000 common stock purchase warrants to non employees for
services provided to the Company. These warrants expire between
six months and five years from che date of the grant and have an
exercise price between $.70 and $2.50 per share. The Company
recognizes an expense equivalent to the fair market value of the
services.

NOTE H - STOCKHCLDERS' EQUITY

Stock Warrants

During the three months ended March 31, 1996, the Company granted
54,400 common stock purchase warrants to certain key employees and
100,000 to outside directors. These warrants expire between six
months and five years from the date ¢f grant and have an exercise
price between $.70 and $2.50 per share.

Ar March 31, 1996 the Company had outstanding warrants that gave
the holders the right to purchase 3,489,628 shares of the
Company's common stock at prices ranging from $.70 to $2.50 per
share.

Stock ODLions

During the three months ended March 31, 1996, the Company granted
160,000 stock options to certain employees. The exercise price of
the stock options granted to the employees ranged from §.7 to
$2.00 per share, the estimated fair market value of the Company's
common stock at the date of grant. No compensation expense has
been recognized in the financial statements rel:ced to the grant
of these options.

See accountants’ compilation report.
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Cth-.:'.' Communications Intnml:..ll. Inc.
and Subsidiaries
(A Development Stage Company)
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 1996

(UNAUDITED)

NOTE H - STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (Cont.)

Stock OptionsiConc.)

The Company has established three stock option plans, the
Long-term Stock Option Plan, the Incentive Stock Option Plan and
the Non Employee Director Stock Option Plan. Each plan is
aucthorized to grant 500,000 shares of common stock options and the
exercise price c¢f these shares must be at least equal to the fair
market value of the Company’s common stock price at the date of
the grant. Options can be issued with varying terms and contain
various provisions pertaining to accelerated vesting in “he event
of significant corporate changes. The following table represents

a summary of the outstanding options in the plans at March 31,
1986

Option Price Number of
Stock Options —Per Share Qpcions
outstanding, beginning of year 5.70 * #%50,000
Granted $.70 - S2.00 160,000
Canceled 5.70 {
Outstanding, end of gquarter $.70 - §2.00 916,500
Exercisable, end of quarter 280,500

See accountants’ compilation report
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'Iil-
Ungudited Pro Forma Combingd Statement of Operations
For the Thies Months Ended March 11, 1098

t!"
; Hislorical } Pro Froma
Chaner Phoenis
Commrarec atons Data
livl e natianal, Inc.e{1) Syslama, Inc. (2} Adpistments Combsined
Flewerom.

Cormiruratataarm Servces ] §780 § ] 7,843
Hardeny bt Softwsin 50 030 1.204 85C 1,254 720
tnternat Connaction Benaces 1849 o prat s
Syuasm Servcm o 161,001 161,001

Tota! Revenues 4,722 1,385 891 1,797 813

Covl of Rwvenues and Opersting Expenset

Data Communicatons and Oparations 110 68s 104,702 324387
Hardwars arad Softears Cost 7205 1015753 1,057 958
Sales and Markating 180,147 91,629 nTm
Ganersl gnd Admanhirstien S77 588 180 835 758,223
Dugrwciation snd Arertirston §1.852 15081 § M ) 184388
Inderasd Expence 44518 (3.3485) a,m
e el i [1200] @2.271) {3,208}

Totai Cosl of Aevernms and

Dper ations 1,152,157 1,402 183 18,341 260,081

Lows belore income Lases and minority

nderesl 0 consabdsted subudiary (T30 435 DeIrn ™8 342) [81) Dl
e s eronTaon fbarade)
Mty Placesl i consoldated subnad any 12,783 {12785 (0§ [}
Ml Losa $ (707 51 & {6 2TH @1s 8 _m
Lows par commo= < . {2 09) {0 o8
Wesghded sverage shares oulslandng 8 247 832 L) Il}iﬂﬂ

See Motes 1o Unaudded Pro Forma Financlal Statement




NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION

On March 21, 1996, Charter Communications Internactional, Inc.
(Charter) acquired all of the outstanding stock of Phoenix Data
Systems, Inc. (Systems) by immediately issuing 825,000 shares of
the Company's common stock valued at $2.00 per share and
deferring the issuance of an addicional 175,000 shares of common
stock subject to warranties and covenants of Systems and Systems
shareholders that could be used to offset claims against Systems.
Additionally, the Company acquired the remaining 10% minoricty
interest of Phoenix DataNet, Inc. (PDN) by issuing 150,000 shares
of the Company's common stock valued at §2.00.

{1) Column includes historical financial information for Charter
and was cobtained from unaudiced financial data.

{2} Column includes unaudited historical financial information
for Systems and was obtained from the entity's financial

statements included herein.

{1) Adjustment to amortize goodwill acquired, totaling $
1,526,845, over five years (from January 1, 1996 to March
Ji, 19%e}.

{4) Adjustment to eliminate minority interest in consolidated
subsidiary, Phoenix DataNet, Inc. as of January 1, 1996.
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EXHIBIT "C"

OVERLOOK COMMUNICATIONS
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION



Ovarlook .ununlnlﬁunl international .

Income Statement
For the years 1885 and 1934

ARevenues 1995 1904
OC1 Adman Fass 3 124,085 554,483
Confersncing 1.207 -
Debit Card - Other 258,460 54,237
Deabit Card - Trendar 84,704 -
Interactive Senvce 500,845 124,878
Long Destance Resale . -
Long Dmiance - LCI 710,881 715,828
Wholess e Platform - -
Intemat & Widive s -
Fax Servces &

Call Canter 150,822 -

3 1,845,802 1,450,404

Communcabons 5 611,400 225,350
Roysbes §7.072 21,587
Deprecmton 160,000 127,289
Total Cost of Revenuas 3 830,472 a78.220
Gross Margn ] 1,015,120 1,083,178
Selling, General, and Administrative Expenses

SalanesWages 3 955,533 713,772
Employes Banelits 61,450 58,802
Payrol Taxes 74,881 64,030
Contract Labor 178,087 174,124
Consuitng | Conract Servces - 85,000
Commissions {8.772) 187,844
Advertsing 22,103 34,804
Travel & Entertasnment 68,000 70,950
Rent & Unltes 232,054 229 668
Insurance 11,783 9.832
Repars & Manlsnance 1617 6,642
Cifice Supphes 25,122 20824
Misceilaneous 42,786 31,420
Dues/Subscnplicns 1,400 31937
Postage & Shppeg 17,269 30,601
Legal & Accounting 131,084 47373
Bank Fess /Charges 4682 16,611
Bad Dabt Expense 14,500 99,200
Taxes 17,938 489
Total SGAA Expenses 3 1,658 481 1,884 .03)
Incomae |Loss) from Operations 1 (643,351) (800,8713)
interest Expensae (Incoma) 5 80,452 19,158
Net Inceme (Loss) 3 (903 803} (820, 229)

CMPISBUDSS XLS




Ov.ok Communications International .

Balance Sheels
December 31, 1995 and 1594

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash

Trade Accounts Receivable (Net)
Miscellaneous Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assels
Fixed Assets:

Projects in Development
Furnilure & Fbdures

Equipment
Software
Accumulaled Depreciation

Taotal Fixed Assats
Tolal Assels

LIABILITIES & SHAREHOLDERS" EQUITY

Curent Llabilities:

Trade Accounls Payable
Iintercompany Payable
Accrued Llabililies
toles Payable

Capilal Lease Obligalion
Accrued Commission

Total Current Liabdlities

Long Term Debt

Tolal Liabilitles

Sharehaolders Equity.

Commaon Slock
Treasury Slock
Retained Earnings

Total Sharehoiders’ Equity

Tolal Liabililes & Sharehoiders’ Equily

1965 1964
89,222 178,145
239,845 117,391
263,464 112,313
142,721 61,082
755,062 468,942
124,679 124,679
58,843 57,408
958,082 662 830
335,852 190,532

(375,928) (215.928)
1,101,338 828,611
1,858 400 1.297 553
956 875 227123
64, 898 .
141,025 124, 819
808,893 .
51,548 57,067
55,371 182,329
2.078.810 501,258

50,000

2.128.610 591,358
1,637.4589 1,537,469
{174.200) .

{1,735 408) (B31,304)
(<72.210) T06.190
1,858 400 1,297 55]




. Overiook Communicatio ternational

Statement of Cash
For the years 1995 and 1994

Operating Activities

MNet (loss) income

Adjustments to reconcile net income 1o net cash
(used In) from operaling activilies:

Depreciation & Amortization
Provision for doubtful accounts
Increased payables

Increased accruals
Increased receivables and prepayments

Other- net
Net cash flows from operations

Investing Activities

investmenlts in property, plant, and equipment

Net cash flows (used in) invesling aclivilies

Financing Actlvities

Proceeds from capilal leasing

Proceeds from shareholder loans
Proceeds from long term debt
Repurchase of common stock

Proceeds from issuance of common slock

Net cash flows from financing aclivilies
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalenis
Cash and cash equivalenls at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalerts at the end of the year

CMPRCFBUDSG6.XLS

WS

“r

1985 1984
(903.892)  (820,229)
160,000 162,089

14,500 99,200
817,238  (274,307)
(133,262) 182,329
(389,543) 316,965
(311) 21,200
(435,270)  (312,753)
(432,727)  (509,317)
(432,727)  (509,317)
(5.519) 57.067
808,893 151.000
50,000 .
(174,300) .
100,000 750,299
779,074 958,366
(88,923) 136,296
178,145 41,849
89,222 178,145
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NowALSKY & BRONSTON, L.L.p A
LBON L. NOWALSKY ATTORNEYS AT LAW BENJAMIN W. BRONSTON
i 3 * G {ARD
MARHAD O 3900 NOKTH CAUSEWAY BOULEVARD “’w"(",:’('.m‘,&? o
SUITE127%
METAIRIR, LOUISIANA 70002 Writer's Direct Dial Number
TELUIMIONE: (504) 8321984 (504) 838-7423

PACSIMILE: (504) 831-0092
E-MAIL: Nowa!Bron@aol com

August 8, 1096

VIA FEDERAL EXPRESS on %9 1\ -
2\ Ao

Executive Secretary \

Florida Public Service Commission

2450 Schumard Oak Boulevard

Tallahassee, Florida 32389-0850

Re: Application for Approval of Merger Between Charter
Comminucations International, Inc.. OCI Acquisition Corp. and
Overiook Communications International, Corporation
Dear Sir:

On behalf of Overiook Communications International, Corporation, enclosed please
find an original and thirteen (13) coples of the referenced Application. Also enclosed is a
check In the amount of $250.00 to cover the filing fee.

Please date stamp and return the enclosed extra copy of this letter in the envelope
provided.

Please call me should you have any questions concerning this filing. Thank you for
your assistance with this matter.

RUST BANK OF GEORGIA 84 0200610
SO\”NA!Y\lA?ﬂA GEORQIA

. SN CC IMICATIONS INTERNATIOMAL . 0, ?,92
4439 ¢ ABES FERRY KOAD, SUITE 500
ATEANTA. GBORGIA 30039
IAX (770) 432 axxi
3
wdred Fifty Dollars And 00 Cents

5683

OUNT
AN $250.00

(O




@ ®
i & .‘% ) ‘J,l‘"L
K :

%’. 'j. J‘ t\l“ﬂ
P - &
NowalLsky & BRONSTON, L.L.F. Har T
LEON L NOWALSKY ATTORNEYS AT LAW DEMNAMIN W. BRONSTON
! NE W ARD P GOTHAKR
PRI B 3900 NORTH CAUSEWAY BOULEVARD A AU,.{._].“:::‘:_[ A
SUITE 1273
METAHULL, LOUISIANA 70002 Writer's Dircct Dia! Number
TELEPHONE: (504) 8321984 {504) B3B-7423

FACSIMILE (504) 8310852
E-MAI1L: NowalBron@anl.com

August 8, 1908
VIA FEDERAL EXPRESS o% 29 )
"J‘\“"t\mb
Executive Secretary
Florida Public Service Commission
2450 Schumard Oak Boulevard

Tallahassee, Florida 32388-0850

Re: Application for Approval of Merger Between Charter
Comminucations International, Inc.. OC| Acquisition Corp. and
Overlook Communications International, Corporation
Dear Sir:

On behalf of Overlook Communications International, Corporation, enclosed please
find an original and thirteen (13) copies of the referenced Application. Also enclosed is a
check in the amount of $250.00 to cover the filing fee.

Please date stamp and return the enclosed extra copy of this letter in the enve.ope
provided.

Please call me should you have any questions concerning this filing. Thank you for
your assistance with this matter.

Sincerely,

Mool -

Edward P. Gothard
EPG/bg --

Enclosures




OVERLOOK COMMUMNICATIONS INTERNATIOMAL

COMMENT

W WD D L MAREE PAYRAE T PaLiiBE m CHiCx DATE
TRFO3E Florida PSC 1614
U STHILHE R NLIEE M YOUA WOUCHE M NUMBER i ATy AARCRUNT AN P L WHRITE HET
- LN e T
2262 [A0GRG erer%e §250.00] G 5
129000 B —80e00{ ———$0.004 — _ $24
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